
AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

December 13, 2021 

6:00pm Regular Session 

Downieville: Downieville School, 130 School St, Downieville CA 95936 

**Masks are required for in-person attendance** 

In accordance with AB 361, effective October 1, 2021, pertaining to the convening of public meetings in response 
to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Sierra County Board of Education will suspend the Brown Act teleconferencing 

posting requirements for any Board members that choose to participate via Zoom videocoriferencing. 

Zoom: http ://us02web.zoom.tdj/85833 27452 

Phone dial-in: 669-900-9128 
(Press *6 to unmute) 

Webinar ID: 858 3332 7452 

Any individual who requires disability-related accommodalions or modijkatio11s i11d11d/11g t111.rllimy aids and services in order to participate in the 
Board meeting should contact the S11per/11t1.md 111 ()/' d sig,11' in writing, 

Public inspection of agenda documents that are distributed to the Board less than 72 hours before the meeting, will be made available at the Sierra 
County Office of Education, Room 3, 109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton, CA, 96118, and posted with tire 011/ine agenda at 

h1111:lh'Wll',.l'i�rr11cm11111vimceo!ird11ca[i(!ll,Urg (Government Code 54957.5). 

A. CALL TO ORDER
Please be advised that this meeting will be recorded.

B. ROLL CALL

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

D. FLAG SALUTE

E. ANNUAL ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING-BOARD ORGANIZATION

1. Election of Officers for 2022
The Secretary of the Board/County Superintendent will call for the election of a
President. After the election is completed, the Secretary will tum the meeting over to the
newly elected President. The President will then call for the election of the Vice President
and the Clerk of the Board.

a. President
b. Vice President
c. Clerk of the Board

2. The President will appoint the County Superintendent, James Berardi, as Secretary of the
Board and direct the Secretary to inform the appropriate agencies of the Sierra County
Office of Education of the newly elected officers.

3. Approval of the Sierra County Board of Education Meeting Calendar for 2022**

F. 6:15PM-BOARD Q&A WITH LEGAL COUNSEL

G. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Superintendent's Report
a. Technology update
b. Acceptance of resignation for Danielle Jackson, Loyalton Elementary School,

Instructional Aide, .71 FTE (4.25 hours/day), effective November 19, 2021 **

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA 

l

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85833327452


Sierra County Board of Education 

December 13, 2021 Board Meeting Agenda 

c. Assignment of Sharie Jackowiak, Instructional Aide, . 71 FTE ( 4.25 hours
daily), effective January 3, 2022

d. Assignment of Danielle Jackson, Loyalton Elementary School, Special
Education Aide, .76 FTE (4.58 hours/day), effective November 19, 2021

e. Adult Education modular purchase

2. Business Report
a. Account Object Summary-Balance from 07/01/2021 to 11/30/2021 **
b. The Sierra County Office of Education will be closed to the public for winter

break from December 20, 2021 through December 31, 2021 (returning January 3)

3. Staff Reports (5 minutes)

4. Board Member Reports (5 minutes)

5. Public Comment - This is an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the governing

board on any item of interest that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the governing board whether or
not it is listed on the agenda. Three (3) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of twenty
(20) minutes to each subject matter. (Education Code 35145.5; Bylaw 9322; Government Code 54954.3)

H. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Approval of minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held November 09, 2021 ** 
2. Approval of Board Report-Checks Dated 11/01/2021 through 11/30/2021 **

I. ACTION ITEMS

1. New Business
a. Mask Mandate
b. Approval of Resolution Calling for State Officials to Not Require the COVID-

19 Vaccine for Students and Staff, Resolution No. 22-006C**
c. Adoption of 2021-2022 First Interim Actuals and Criteria & Standards Report

as of October 31, 2021 **
d. Approval of Educator Effectiveness Plan**
e. Approval of the Tentative Agreement for Sierra-Plumas Teachers Association,

2021-22 & 2022-23 Negotiations**
f. Approval of the Completion of Bargaining for the Sierra-Plumas Teachers

Association, 2021-22 & 2022-23 Negotiations**
g. Approval of the Tentative Agreement for Administrative Employees, 2021-22

& 2022-23 Negotiations**
h. Approval of the Completion of Bargaining for the Administrative Employees,

2021-22 & 2022-23 Negotiations**
i. Approval of the Tentative Agreement for Confidential Employees, 2021-22 &

2022-23 Negotiations**

J. Approval of the Completion of Bargaining for the Confidential Employees,
2021-22 & 2022-23 Negotiations**

k. Approval of the Tentative Agreement for Classified Employees, 2021-22 &
2022-23 Negotiations**

I. Appointment of Kimberly Askew to the Student Attendance Review Board,
Sierra COE Foster Youth Services and McKinney-Vento Liaison

m. Approval of utilizing AB 361 for meetings conducted through January 11, 2022
**This suspends the Brown Act teleconferencing posting requirements for 
any Board members that choose to participate via Zoom videoconferencing 
**Zoom will be available for the public with or without utilizing AB 361 

Page 2 of3 



Sie1Ta County Board of Education 
December 13, 2021 Board Meeting Agenda 

BOARD POLICIES, ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS, EXHIBITS, BOARD BYLAWS 

n. 6120-Response to Instruction and Intervention
1. Board Policy, NEW**

o. 6146.1-High School Graduation Requirements
1. Board Policy, revisions**

2. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

p. 6164.4-Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education
1. Board Policy, revisions**

2. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

q. 6164.5-Student Success Teams
1. Board Policy, revisions**

2. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

J. ADVANCED PLANNING

1. Next Regular Board Meetings will be held on January 11, 2022 at Sierra County Office of
Education, Room 4, 109 Beckwith Rd, Loyalton CA 96118, beginning with Closed Session
as needed at 5:00pm and the Regular Board Meetings at 6:00pm. Masks are required for in
person attendance. Zoom videoconferencing will be available for the public.

2. Suggested Agenda Items

K. ADJOURN

� 

� � ---
h mes Berardi, Superintendent
Secretary to the County Board of Education 

*** prior month handout 
** enclosed 

* handout

James Berardi, Superintendent (jberardi@spiusd.org) 
Kristie Jacobsen, Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent (kjacobsen@spjusd.org) 
Nona Griesert, Business Manager (ngriesert@wjusd.org) 
Office: 530-993-1660 x0 

Email schoolinfo@spiu cl.org to be added to the agenda email list. 

Page3of3 



 

Proposed:  December 13, 2021 

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
GOVERNING BOARD  

 
MEETING SCHEDULE 

 
YEAR 2022 

 
All regular meetings are held on the second Tuesday of the month  

with the exception of June. 

**Masks are required for in-person attendance** 

JANUARY 11, 2022 ........................................... Loyalton 

FEBRUARY 08, 2022 ........................................ Downieville 
MARCH 08, 2022 ............................................... Loyalton 

APRIL 12, 2022 ................................................. Downieville 

MAY 11, 2022 ..................................................... Loyalton 

JUNE 21, 2022 ................................................... Downieville 

JULY 12, 2022 .................................................... Loyalton 

AUGUST 09, 2022 ............................................ Downieville 

SEPTEMBER 13, 2022 ...................................... Loyalton 

OCTOBER 11, 2022 ......................................... Downieville 

NOVEMBER 08, 2022 ...................................... Loyalton 

DECEMBER 13, 2022....................................... Downieville 
 
Pertaining to the convening of public meetings in response to the COVID-19 pandemic:  

Effective October 1, 2021, AB 361 may be voted on every 30 days if it is to 
be utilized to suspend the Brown Act teleconferencing posting 
requirements for any Board members that choose to participate via Zoom 
videoconferencing. Zoom videoconferencing will be available for the 
public with or without utilizing AB 361. 

 
The Sierra County Board of Education regular meetings will begin at 6:00 pm.   
 
The Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board regular meetings are 
scheduled to begin immediately following the meeting of the Sierra County Board of Education.   
 
Closed Session may be held before or after the regular meetings. 
 
Special Meetings and Emergency Meetings will be held in Loyalton unless otherwise decided 
by the Board President. 
 
Email schoolinfo@spjusd.org to be added to the agenda email list. 

mailto:schoolinfo@spjusd.org




Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2021/22Balances through June

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 307,843.00 307,843.00 209,416.48 93,659.96 4,766.56 Teachers Salaries

1115 1,000.00 1,000.00 330.00 670.00 Certificated Extra Duty

1120 7,500.00 7,500.00 710.00 6,790.00 Certificated Substitutes

1200 56,444.00 56,444.00 17,827.11 14,089.65 24,527.24 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 197,315.00 197,315.00 110,834.01 81,654.85 4,826.14 Certificated Supervisor Admini

1310 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 Teacher in Charge

Total for Object 1000 580,102.00 580,102.00 338,077.60 190,444.46 51,579.94 

2100 154,607.00 154,607.00 85,035.24 33,097.49 36,474.27 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2115 1,000.00 1,000.00 311.20 688.80 Classified Extra Duty

2120 5,000.00 5,000.00 3,978.21 1,021.79 Classified Substitutes

2200 39,910.00 39,910.00 45,535.19 23,535.00 29,160.19-Classified Support Salaries

2215 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Classified Support Extra Duty

2220 111.08 111.08-Classified Substitute Salaries

2300 207,800.00 207,800.00 72,906.05 52,055.00 82,838.95 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 150,609.00 150,609.00 85,465.66 59,057.59 6,085.75 Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 19,752.00 19,752.00 826.00 18,926.00 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 579,678.00 579,678.00 288,942.14 172,971.57 117,764.29 

3101 160,406.00 160,406.00 57,202.67 31,789.42 71,413.91 STRS Certificated Positions

3201 16.04 16.04-PERS Certificated Positions

3202 122,318.00 122,318.00 63,162.97 39,801.52 19,353.51 PERS Classified Positions

3301 4.34 4.34-OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 35,661.00 35,661.00 17,729.70 10,860.44 7,070.86 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 9,207.00 9,207.00 4,744.74 2,913.41 1,548.85 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 8,346.00 8,346.00 4,149.83 2,542.83 1,653.34 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 110,570.00 110,570.00 69,554.59 35,352.14 5,663.27 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 70,148.00 70,148.00 77,219.59 45,218.72 52,290.31-Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 6,748.00 6,748.00 1,690.36 1,034.51 4,023.13 SUI Certificated

3502 7,129.00 7,129.00 1,444.25 877.58 4,807.17 SUI Classified

3601 24,094.00 24,094.00 11,693.71 6,619.64 5,780.65 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 21,837.00 21,837.00 10,227.33 6,266.80 5,342.87 Workers' Compensation Classifi

3901 15,689.00 15,689.00 15,688.50 .50 Golden Handshake

Total for Object 3000 592,153.00 592,153.00 318,819.74 198,985.89 74,347.37 

4100 1,001.00 1,001.00 1,001.00 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4300 54,248.00 54,248.00 13,708.18 11,114.72 29,425.10 Materials and Supplies

4320 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Custodial Grounds Supplies

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2022, Period = 12, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  2 2021 10:53AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2215
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2220
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3901
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2021/22Balances through June

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

4330 1,750.00 1,750.00 180.00 1,570.00 Office Supplies

4350 3,500.00 3,500.00 1,050.25 847.92 1,601.83 Vehicle Upkeep

4399 4,293.00 4,293.00 4,293.00 Mat & Sup Undesignated Bal

4400 9,414.00 9,414.00 9,414.00 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 75,206.00 75,206.00 14,938.43 11,962.64 48,304.93 

5100 40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 Subagreements for Services

5200 14,500.00 14,500.00 1,790.24 3,718.78 8,990.98 Travel and Conference

5300 16,941.00 16,941.00 1,061.06 17,460.90 1,580.96-Dues and Membership

5400 15,000.00 15,000.00 17,361.50 2,361.50-Insurance

5500 14,500.00 14,500.00 3,249.23 750.77 10,500.00 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,500.00 2,500.00 575.80 211.09 1,713.11 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 18,500.00 18,500.00 4,914.50 85.50 13,500.00 Legal Services

5805 500.00 500.00 118.00 32.00 350.00 Personnel Expense

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,149.64 350.36 .00 Other Services & Fees

5810 385,979.00 385,979.00 342,547.16 55,873.06 12,441.22-Contracted Services

5899 6,013.24 28,181.84 34,195.08-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 10,500.00 10,500.00 5,411.80 7,436.62 2,348.42-Communications

Total for Object 5000 520,420.00 520,420.00 366,830.67 131,462.42 22,126.91 

6400 20,000.00 20,000.00 29,834.41 9,834.41-Equipment

6500 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 Equipment Replacement

Total for Object 6000 35,000.00 35,000.00 29,834.41 .00 5,165.59 

7110 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 County Tuition Inter Dist Agre

7141 24,428.00 24,428.00 24,428.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 49,428.00 49,428.00 .00 .00 49,428.00 

368,717.03 2,431,987.00 2,431,987.00 1,357,442.99 705,826.98 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 11 - ADULT ED   

1100 7,626.55 7,626.55-Teachers Salaries

1300 101,715.00 101,715.00 57,605.38 41,146.70 2,962.92 Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 101,715.00 101,715.00 57,605.38 48,773.25 4,663.63-

2200 3,143.00 3,143.00 3,143.00 Classified Support Salaries

2400 14,158.80 7,360.05 21,518.85-Clerical Technical Office Staf

Total for Object 2000 3,143.00 3,143.00 14,158.80 7,360.05 18,375.85-

3101 22,410.00 22,410.00 9,746.80 7,782.36 4,880.84 STRS Certificated Positions

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2022, Period = 12, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  2 2021 10:53AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4399
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7110
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3101


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2021/22Balances through June

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 11 - ADULT ED    (continued)

3202 720.00 720.00 3,243.77 1,686.18 4,209.95-PERS Classified Positions

3301 172.25 172.25-OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 195.00 195.00 877.85 456.33 1,139.18-OASDI Classified Positions

3311 1,475.00 1,475.00 835.31 707.23 67.54-Medicare Certificated Position

3312 46.00 46.00 205.29 106.72 266.01-Medicare Classified Positions

3401 12,767.00 12,767.00 7,447.30 5,319.50 .20 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3501 1,251.00 1,251.00 288.05 243.87 719.08 SUI Certificated

3502 39.00 39.00 70.80 36.82 68.62-SUI Classified

3601 3,859.00 3,859.00 2,058.56 1,742.93 57.51 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 119.00 119.00 505.98 263.01 649.99-Workers' Compensation Classifi

Total for Object 3000 42,881.00 42,881.00 25,279.71 18,517.20 915.91-

4100 6,500.00 6,500.00 2,796.47 3,703.53 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4300 6,000.00 6,000.00 4,195.97 5,703.69 3,899.66-Materials and Supplies

4320 2,000.00 2,000.00 258.97 1,741.03 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 3,000.00 3,000.00 965.78 1,054.51 979.71 Office Supplies

4350 5,000.00 5,000.00 1,584.22 38.00 3,377.78 Vehicle Upkeep

4400 5,200.00 5,200.00 4,896.30 4,611.22 4,307.52-Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 27,700.00 27,700.00 11,642.27 14,462.86 1,594.87 

5200 6,500.00 6,500.00 668.71 1,318.86 4,512.43 Travel and Conference

5203 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 MILEAGE

5300 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,183.40 316.60 Dues and Membership

5500 4,200.00 4,200.00 2,733.17 666.83 800.00 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,500.00 2,500.00 1,013.35 884.87 601.78 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Legal Services

5805 100.00 100.00 1.00 49.00 50.00 Personnel Expense

5808 489.60 110.40 600.00-Other Services & Fees

5810 17,000.00 17,000.00 3,111.42 17,751.49 3,862.91-Contracted Services

5900 5,000.00 5,000.00 759.62 440.38 3,800.00 Communications

Total for Object 5000 38,800.00 38,800.00 8,776.87 22,405.23 7,617.90 

6200 6,380.00 6,380.00 3,250.00 3,250.00 120.00-Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 6,610.00 6,610.00 6,610.00 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 12,990.00 12,990.00 3,250.00 3,250.00 6,490.00 

7619 6,971.00 6,971.00 6,971.00 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

1,281.62-234,200.00 234,200.00 120,713.03 114,768.59 Total for Fund 11 and Expense accounts

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2022, Period = 12, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 3 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  2 2021 10:53AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5203
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=7619


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2021/22Balances through June

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 16 - FOREST RES   

7211 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 Transfers of Pass-through Rev

7619 13,360.00 13,360.00 13,360.00 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

93,360.00 93,360.00 93,360.00 .00 .00 Total for Fund 16, Expense accounts and Object 7000

460,795.41 2,759,547.00 2,759,547.00 1,478,156.02 820,595.57 Total for Org 001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2022, Period = 12, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 4 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  2 2021 10:53AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7211
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=128350&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7619


1 

SCOE Minutes 

November 09, 2021 

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

November 09, 2021 

In accordance with AB 361, effective October 1, 2021, pertaining to the convening of public meetings in 

response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Sierra County Board of Education held this meeting exclusively 

via Zoom videoconferencing. 

6:00pm Regular Session 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

President PATTY HALL called the meeting to order at 6:04pm. 

B. ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Patty Hall, President 

  Allen Wright, Vice President 

Christina Potter, Clerk 

  Mike Moore, Member 

  Nicole Stannard, Member 

ABSENT: None 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

WRIGHT/MOORE 

5/0 

D. FLAG SALUTE 

E. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Superintendent’s Report 

a. Strategic Planning update 

BERARDI: First meeting held last Friday (11/5), and second meeting 

scheduled for tomorrow (11/10) with board members and administrators. 

During the second meeting we will schedule a community meeting for input 

districtwide at a later date. 

b. Assignment of Danielle Jackson, Instructional Aide, Loyalton Elementary 

School, .71 FTE (4.25 hours per day), effective November 1, 2021 

c. Acceptance of resignation for Amy Burt, Loyalton Elementary School, Special 

Education Instructional Aide, .76 FTE (4.58 hours/day), effective November 1, 2021 

d. Authorization to fill Special Education Instructional Aide, Loyalton Elementary 

School, .76 FTE (4.58 hours/day) 

e. Assignment of Michael Muyanjga, Technology Specialist, 1.0 FTE, effective 

November 22, 2021 

BERARDI: Looking forward to having Michael onboard to help with the 

technology needs of the district. 

f. Vaccine Mandate update 

BERARDI: I attend weekly meetings with the Sierra County Health Department 

to discuss many things related to COVID-19. I also meet with other County 

Superintendents across California. What I know at this time is that there is a 

mandate in the pipeline intended to go into effect July 1st, but I also know that 

this will be challenged on many levels. It is yet to be seen whether or not any 

vaccine mandate will come to fruition. We will hold a community meeting in 

the near future to keep a dialogue going. 

 



2 

SCOE Minutes 

November 09, 2021 

2. Business Report 

a. Account Object Summary-Balance from 07/01/2021 to 10/31/2021 

3. Staff Reports 

SELPA—BETHKE: Happy to have our new-hire, Danielle Jackson! She’s a quick 

learner and doing really well so far. Hoping to also get someone to apply for the 

open position we currently have. 

ADULT ED—JACKSON: Overview of the new Adult Education website 

(www.thescsa.org). We’ve opened a Community Work Space at the Adult Ed 

location four days a week. Partnering with Plumas, Lassen and Modoc County to 

become Heart Safe – starting first round of CPR, AED and First Aid classes second 

week of December to help Sierra County become Heart Safe certified. New signs 

going up soon for the Adult Ed building. 

4. Board Member Reports 

MOORE: I’m responsible for the items regarding mask and vaccine mandates 

being on the County agenda so the public wouldn’t have to wait all the way into the 

District meeting to discuss. I apologize for misstating the meetings this month were 

being held via Zoom because of the Health Department.  

STANNARD: I misunderstood what we were voting on with AB 361 last month and 

will not be making that mistake going forward. I believed it was to be an in-person 

meeting with a Zoom option for anybody who may need it. It should be more clear 

in the language on the agendas what is being voted on (i.e. exclusively via Zoom). 

There shouldn’t be any more Zoom-exclusive meetings going forward. No one is 

trying to be less transparent intentionally, but we need to look at being more 

transparent. 

POTTER: I thought the language for AB 361 was ambiguous, and I too thought I 

was voting on an in-person meeting with Zoom as an option. Parents feel like they 

are being silenced and not heard. I am not ok with being part of something where 

mandates are being forced on parents and their children that I don’t agree with. 

HALL: Our last meeting on October 12th was in the middle of our own outbreak in 

the schools which was when we voted on utilizing AB 361 for the November 

meeting. We were not trying to hide anything, but I apologize if that was the 

impression people got. 

5. Public Comment 

Multiple speakers were heard regarding the following topics in no particular order:  

-speaking against mask mandates 

-speaking against vaccine mandates 

-asking what the ramifications are of not following and/or enforcing the 

mandates 

-requests for in-person meetings 

-calling for the resignation of Board member Mike Moore 

JENNA HOLLAND—community member, SSF president: **Kristie Jacobsen read 

Jenna’s statement received via email: (summary for minutes) Thank you to the 

teachers and staff for all of their hard work through these continuously challenging 

times. Glad to see the Board is underway with the Strategic Planning process. 

Sierra Schools Foundation is awarding 13+ seniors with at least $500 each to 

work on their Senior Projects. Annual newsletter coming out this month. 

F. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Approval of minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held October 12, 2021 

2. Approval of Board Report-Checks Dated 10/01/2021 through 10/31/2021 



3 

SCOE Minutes 

November 09, 2021 

MOORE/STANNARD 

5/0 

G. ACTION ITEMS 

1. Old Business 

a. Masks in Schools 

Discussion only. No action was taken. 

2. New Business 

a. Approval of Substitute Daily Rate increase to $80 for Half Days and $140 for 

Full Days, effective October 12, 2021 

STANNARD/POTTER 

5/0 

b. Approval of Long-Term Substitute Daily Rate increase to $165 

STANNARD/POTTER 

5/0 

c. Acceptance of the Sierra-Plumas Teachers Association Sunshine Proposal for 

the 2021-2022 School Year to open negotiations 

MOORE/STANNARD 

5/0 

d. Educator Effectiveness Plan discussion (approval in December) 

BERARDI: Looking to receive money for Educator Effectiveness (professional 

development). Has to be discussed here to show that we are willing to accept the 

funds. Next month we will vote on a plan on how we intend to spend the funds.  

GRIESERT: County is getting approximately $10,000 and District getting 

approximately $150,000. We have several years to spend the funds. This is for 

Certificated and Classified staff for professional development. 

WRIGHT motioned to approve the intent to write a plan for receiving and 

utilizing Educator Effectiveness funds. Second by HALL. 

5/0 

e. Approval of agreement with Cadence for Network Infrastructure equipment 

and services, Contract 2022-015C 

WRIGHT/MOORE 

5/0 

f. Approval of utilizing AB 361 to conduct the next scheduled board meeting via 

Zoom videoconferencing – December 13, 2021 

STANNARD motioned to utilize AB 361 with a hybrid model for Board 

members. Second by MOORE. 

The meeting will be held in-person in Downieville in December, but 

Board members have the option to attend via Zoom if they so choose due 

to health and safety concerns. Zoom will also be available for the public. 

5/0 

H. ADVANCED PLANNING 

1. Next Regular Board Meetings will be held on December 13, 2021 (a Monday), beginning 

with Closed Session as needed at 5:00pm and the Regular Board Meetings at 6:00pm. 

Location TBD. Zoom videoconferencing will be available for the public. 

In Downieville for in-person option. 

***In accordance with AB 361, effective October 1, 2021, pertaining to the 

convening of public meetings in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Sierra 

County Board of Education will suspend the Brown Act teleconferencing 



4 

SCOE Minutes 

November 09, 2021 

requirements for any Board members that choose to participate via Zoom 

videoconferencing. 

2. Suggested Agenda Items 

-Hold a Special Meeting to discuss mask and vaccine mandates before the 

December meeting 

I. ADJOURN at 7:56pm 

HALL/MOORE 

5/0 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

Christina Potter, Clerk    James Berardi, Superintendent 

       Secretary to the County Board of Education 



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 11/01/2021 through 11/30/2021

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00016065 11/10/2021 ALHAMBRA 11-4330 WATER SERVICE 4.99 

00016066 11/10/2021 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-4300 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 112.81 

IPAD FOR VISUAL IMPAIRMENT 26.79 139.60 

00016067 11/10/2021 CIT 01-5900 PHONE SYSTEM/MAINTENANCE 773.08 

00016068 11/10/2021 CPI 01-4300 WORKBOOKS 503.86 

00016069 11/10/2021 CWDL CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 01-9500 AUDIT FEES 7,997.50 

01-9515 AUDIT FEES 799.75- 7,197.75 

00016070 11/10/2021 K12 MANAGEMENT DBA FUELED 11-5810 FUEL ED 622.33 

00016071 11/10/2021 KELLI GROCK 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 2,340.80 

00016072 11/10/2021 KLINGELHOFER/FOLSOM 11-5810 HALL RENTAL 180.00 

00016073 11/10/2021 LEARNING ALLY 01-4300 INSTITUTION SEAT PACKAGE 990.00 

00016074 11/10/2021 LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 276.39 

11-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 129.69 406.08 

00016075 11/10/2021 SAVVAS LEARNING COMPANY LLC 11-4100 TEXTBOOKS 1,319.81 

00016076 11/10/2021 PLUMAS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 01-5810 DEAF/HH & VISION SERVICES 325.00 

00016077 11/10/2021 PLUMAS-SIERRA TELECOMMUNICATIONS 11-5600 BROADBAND SERVICE 109.00 

00016078 11/10/2021 SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-4300 SHOP SUPPLIES 526.33 

00016079 11/10/2021 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INSURANCE GROUP 01-9535 HEALTH INSURANCE 2,874.00 

76-9576 HEALTH INSURANCE 21,505.60 24,379.60 

00016080 11/10/2021 U.S. BANK 01-4300 RED RIBBON WEEK SUPPLIES 1,444.32 

SHOP SUPPLIES 244.69 

WATER BOTTLES ALL SITES 2,390.60 

01-5200 REGISTRATION 425.00 

01-5899 PROJECTOR 85.70 

11-4300 RETURN BOOKS 527.10 

11-4320 PAINT AND SUPPLIES 69.79 5,187.20 

00016081 11/10/2021 U.S. BANK VOYAGER 01-4350 FUEL EXPENSE 157.60 

01-5200 FUEL EXPENSE 76.90 

01-5899 FUEL EXPENSE 81.23 

11-5200 FUEL EXPENSE 57.74 373.47 

Total Number of Checks 17 45,378.90 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 12 20,852.85 01

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  2 2021 10:57AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 11/01/2021 through 11/30/2021

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

ADULT EDUCATION 8 3,020.45 11

Payroll Clearing 1 21,505.60 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 17 45,378.90 

.00 

45,378.90 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  2 2021 10:57AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AND THE 

GOVERNING BOARD OF THE SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Resolution 22-006C/22-009D 

 
Resolution Calling for State Officials to 

Not Require the COVID-19 Vaccine for Students and Staff 

 
WHEREAS, California Governor Gavin Newsom announced October 1, 2021, that California would be 

the first state in the nation to require all students to be vaccinated; and 

 

WHEREAS, Governor Newsom's announcement stated students will be required to be vaccinated, or 

complete an approved exemption form for in-person learning, starting the term following FDA full approval of 

the vaccine for their grade span (7-12 and K-6); and 

 

WHEREAS, Governor Newsom is directing the California Department of Public Health to add the 

COVID-19 vaccine to other vaccinations required for in-person school attendance; and 

 
WHEREAS, COVID-19 vaccine requirements will apply to all "pupil(s) of any private or public 

elementary or secondary school(s)" (HSC section 120335(b)); and 

 

WHEREAS, this mandate will be a condition of in-person attendance (HSC section 12033(f)), and any 

student who is not vaccinated, or does not complete an approved exemption form, may remain enrolled in 

independent study but may not attend in-person instruction; and 

 

WHEREAS, Governor Newsom has directed adults be held to the same standards as students for the 

COVID-19 vaccine; and 

 

WHEREAS, Governor Newsom 's announcement states that the current verify-or-test requirement for 

staff will be converted to a vaccine mandate no later than when the first phase of the student requirement becomes 

effective; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Sierra County Office of Education, Sierra County Board of Education and the Governing 

Board of the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District support    local control and decision-making; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Sierra County Office of Education has operated in-person learning safely since 

reopening in September 2020 with limited vaccine availability for children and no vaccine mandate; and 

 
WHEREAS, Sierra County parents and community members have expressed concern regarding the lack 

of parental and personal choice, along with the lack of research on long-term impacts on children for the COVID- 

19 vaccine. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Sierra County Board of Education and the 

Governing Board of the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District asks that the State of California legislature 

uphold the constitutionally-guaranteed right to provide informed consent before proceeding with any medical 

procedure of residents of the State of California for themselves and their children, as well as to allow for parents, 

students, and staff to have choice in the matter by recommending  and not requiring the COVID-19 vaccine for 

students and staff of TK-12 grade Local Education Agencies. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Sierra County Board of Education and the Governing Board 

of the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District will petition the State of California that the COVID-19 Vaccine 

be a recommendation and not a requirement for students and staff. 

 

 

 

 



Resolution 22-006C/22-009D 

Page 2 

 

This Resolution will be shared with the offices of California Assembly Member Dahle, California State  

Senator Dahle, Governor Newsom, the Sierra County Department of Public Health, and the California 

Department of Public Health. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sierra County Board of Education and the Governing Board of the 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District this 13th day of December, 2021, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  ______________________________________________ 

NOES:  ______________________________________________ 

ABSTENTIONS: ______________________________________________ 

ABSENT:  ______________________________________________ 

 
I, James Berardi, Secretary to the Sierra County Board of Education, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 

true, and correct copy of a resolution passed and adopted by said Board at a regular meeting thereof held  on said 

date. 

        

       ___________________________________ 

James Berardi 

Superintendent/Secretary  

Sierra County Board of Education 

  and the Governing Board of the  

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 



  Prepared & Presented by: Nona Griesert, Business Manager 

 

Sierra County Office of Education 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

First Interim Budget 
2021/22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

December 13, 2021 
James Berardi/Superintendent 

 



    

SCOE 2021-2022 1st Interim Budget Narrative 
Page 2 of 5 

Sierra County Office of Education 
2021-2022 First Interim  

Actuals as of October 31, 2021 

Presented December 13, 2021 

 

 

The First Interim budget report is a snapshot in time of the revenue and expenditure forecasts for the 

current fiscal year as well as a projection of the two subsequent fiscal years. It is a time to adjust the 

budget based upon the enacted State Budget and subsequent trailer bills, the closing of the prior fiscal 

year, and other factors that impact revenue and expenditures. The First Interim report covers the period 

of time from July 1 through October 31 each fiscal year. Keep in mind that a budget and multi-year 

projection are just that - projections, not forecasts.  Projections are expected to change as various 

factors change, they are not predictions.  Projections are the mathematical result of today’s decisions 

based on a given set of assumptions.  Forecasts, on the other hand, are predictions of the future; there is 

a higher implied reliability factor than for projections.  Projections will change anytime the underlying 

factors change. 

 

 

The Big Picture 

 

The COVID-19 pandemic has devastated the nation’s economy. Declines in the employment-to-population ratio exceeded 

predictions which indicate there was additional employment loss in the country due to the pandemic. Everyone has felt the 

effects of the crisis. Businesses have closed, those that remain open have had major hurdles to overcome in order to remain 

open. The government has been scrambling to try to help citizens survive. The variants are coming and it’s unknown as to 

how well the vaccines will be able to remain effective in combating 

the ever changing virus.  

 

The pandemic however accelerated technological and organizational 

trends which have the potential to spur a robust recovery. If the 

business sector can seize the opportunities we could see a virtuous 

cycle emerge. Crises tend to give rise to remarkable innovations and 

insights. This has been an incredible period of innovations with a 

record number of new patents, traditional employment has been 

affected and changes are likely to continue in the years to come for 

the innovations taking place here and now.  

 

As consumer confidence returns so will spending, this has been the experience of all previous economic downturns. While 

being cautiously optimistic of what the new normal will be in some ways the new normal could end up being better. Good 

leadership in business and governments could provide an enduring foundation for the long term.+ 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 



    

SCOE 2021-2022 1st Interim Budget Narrative 
Page 3 of 5 

GENERAL FUND 
 

REVENUE 

Below are the changes in revenue projections since the budget adoption. 

 

Local Control Funding Formula 

LCFF State Revenue has not changed since budget adoption. 

 

Federal Revenue 

Federal Revenue increased $2,103 since the budget adoption.  

 

 

State Revenue 

State Revenue increased by $156,470 since the budget adoption for the following reason: 

 

       Favorable         

Funding Description            (Unfavorable) 

 State Lottery - Unrestricted   $       266 

 State Lottery - Restricted   $       299 

 Educator Effectiveness – RS6266  $  10,340 

 Special Education    $  40,083 

 Foster Youth     $   77,781 

 ELO - RS7425/7426 (PY C/O)  ($   53,302) 

 County Safe Schools    $   60,000 

 CalOES Grant (PY C/O)   $   21,003 

Net Change          $156,470 

 

Local Revenue 

Local Revenue did not have a change since the budget adoption.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LCFF Sources; 
$1,166,917; 41%

Federal ; $173,931; 
6%

Other State; 
$1,067,883; 37%

Other Local; 
$407,500; 14%

Fund 11/16 - Transfer In; 
$56,697; 2%

Total Resources $3,029,398



    

SCOE 2021-2022 1st Interim Budget Narrative 
Page 4 of 5 

 

 
 

Description 2018-19  

Actuals 

2019-2020  

Actuals 

2020-2021 

Unaudited 

Actuals 

2021-2022 

Adopted 

Budget 

2021-2022 

First 

Interim 

LCFF Resources $   851,039 $1,004,442  $1,360,567 $1,166,917 $1,166,917 

Federal            158,912 153,833 164,529 171,828 173,931 

Other State 634,134 789,338 906,883 911,413 1,067,883 

Other Local 486,100 451,949 445,915 407,500 407,500 

Total $2,130,185 $2,399,562 $2,877,894 $2,657,658 $2,816,231 

 

EXPENDITURES 

 

General Fund Expenditures 
Expenditures increased by $320,854 (General Fund, Unrestricted/Restricted, Page 1) from the Board 

Approved Adopted Budget. 

 

 

 
 
Expenditures Comparison  

Description 2018-19  

Actuals 

 

2019-2020  

Actuals 

 

2020-2021 

Unaudited 

Actuals  

2021-2022 

Adopted 

Budget 

2021-2022 

First Interim 

Certificated $  675,798 $  563,831 $  591,047 $ 580,102 $  656,473 

Classified 401,509 400,060 416,033 579,678 576,294 

Benefits 553,278 511,330 556,890 592,153 667,325 

Books & Supplies 35,460 33,156 24,326 75,206 107,798 

Services & Operating 519,917 462,156 466,163 520,420 660,523 

Capital Outlay 291,968 83,784 49,733 35,000 35,000 

Other Outgo 47,204 19,958 -0- 49,428 49,428 

Total $2,525,134 $2,074,275 2,104,192 2,431,987 2,752,841 

Certificated; 
$656,473; 24%

Classified; 
$576,294; 22%

Benefits; $667,325; 
25%

Books & Supplies; 
$107,798; 4%

Services & 
Operating; 

$600,523; 22%

Capital Outlay; 
$35,000; 1%

Outgo to District; 
$49,428; 2%

Total Expenses  $2,752,841



    

SCOE 2021-2022 1st Interim Budget Narrative 
Page 5 of 5 

 

 

 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Projected Ending Fund Balance 

2017-18 $2,846,059 actuals  

2018-19 $2,509,684 actuals 

2019-20 $2,896,329 actuals  

2020-21 $3,653,733 unaudited actuals 

2021-22 $3,773,820 projected 

 

Personnel  FTE 

Certificated  6.50 

Superintendent    .15 

Administrative  2.60  21.55 FTE 

Classified  9.30 

Confidential  3.00 

 

Direct Services Contracted to provide special education services  

Speech 

Occupational Therapy 

Adapted P.E. 

Public Nurse 

 

Comments 

 

1. LCFF COLA for 2021/22: 5.07%, 2022-23: 2.48%, 2023/24: 3.11%. 

2. No salary increases in addition to step and column for employees projected in the current or 

subsequent 2 years. 

3. Certificated health and welfare (H/W) soft cap selected plan employee range (14,398.50 to 

19,534.50);   Certificated employees hired effective 2017/18 hard capped at $17,536; all other 

employees H/W is capped at $17,536. H/W cost is $253,951. 

4. PERS rate increase from 20.70% to 22.91%, for a projected annual cost of $130,402. 

5. STRS rate increase from 16.15% to 16.92%, for a projected annual cost of $196,880. 

6. Reimburse Sierra-Plumas JUSD to provide foster youth, business and curriculum services. 

7. Forest Reserve Revenue budget is $46,000. Additional funding has been approved for 2021/22, 

2022/23 and 2023/24. These are reflected in the MYP for current and two out years. 

8. Multiple sources of COVID-19 related, one time funding is included in the current budget year but 

has been removed from both out year projections. 

9. Positive Certification 

10. Projected ending fund balance: $3,773,820 

Fiscal Year Amount 

2017-18 actuals 115,142 

2018-19 actuals (336,375) 

2019-20 actuals 386,644 

2020-21 unaudited actuals  829,630 

2021-22 projected 120,087 



Reviewed By:

Year: 21/22 21/22 Pos (Neg) % 21/22 21/22 Pos (Neg) % 21/22 21/22 Pos (Neg) %

Period:

Adopted 

Budget First Interim Difference Change

Adopted 

Budget First Interim Difference Change

Adopted 

Budget First Interim Difference Change

Revenues

LCFF Revenues 8010-8099 1,166,917     1,166,917     -                  0.00% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 1,166,917     1,166,917     -                  0.00%

Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 171,828       173,931       2,103           1.22% 171,828       173,931       2,103           1.22%

State Revenues 8300-8599 4,131           4,397           266             6.44% 907,282       1,063,486     156,204       17.22% 6 911,413       1,067,883     156,470       17.17%

Local Revenues 8600-8799 403,000       403,000       -                  0.00% 4,500           4,500           -                  0.00% 407,500       407,500       -                  0.00%

Total Revenues 1,574,048     1,574,314     266              0.02% 1,083,610     1,241,917     158,307       14.61% 2,657,658     2,816,231     158,573       5.97%

Expenditures

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 249,766       295,886       46,120         18.47% 1 330,336       360,587       30,251         9.16% 580,102       656,473       76,371         13.17%

Classified Salaries 2000-2999 328,762       324,124       (4,638)         -1.41% 250,916       252,170       1,254           0.50% 579,678       576,294       (3,384)         -0.58%

Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 299,753       343,990       44,237         14.76% 2 292,400       323,335       30,935         10.58% 592,153       667,325       75,172         12.69%

Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 29,652         44,875         15,223         51.34% 3 45,554         62,923         17,369         38.13% 7 75,206         107,798       32,592         43.34%

Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 300,232       302,795       2,563          0.85% 220,188       357,728       137,540       62.46% 8 520,420       660,523       140,103       26.92%

Capital Outlay 6000-6599 35,000         35,000         -                  0.00% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 35,000         35,000         -                  0.00%

Other Outgo 7xxx's 24,428         24,428         -                  0.00% 25,000         25,000         -                  0.00% 49,428         49,428         -                  0.00%

Other Outgo 7300-7399 (27,978)        (32,152)        (4,174)         14.92% 4 27,978         32,152         4,174           14.92% 4 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Total Expenditures 1,239,615     1,338,946     99,331         8.01% 1,192,372     1,413,895     221,523       18.58% 2,431,987     2,752,841     320,854       13.19%

Rev less Exp 334,433       235,368       (99,065)        -29.62% (108,762)      (171,978)      (63,216)        58.12% 225,671       63,390         (162,281)      -71.91%

Other Sources/Uses

Transfers In 8910-8979 20,331         56,697         36,366         178.87% 5 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 20,331         56,697         36,366         178.87%

Contributions 8980-8999 (108,762)      (108,762)      -                  0.00% 108,762       108,762       -                  0.00% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Transfers Out 7610-7699 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Total Other Sources (88,431)        (52,065)        36,366         -41.12% 108,762       108,762       -                  0.00% 20,331         56,697         36,366         178.87%

Change in Fund Bal 246,002       183,303       (62,699)       -25.49% -                 (63,216)        (63,216)        #DIV/0! 246,002       120,087       (125,915)      -51.18%

Beg Fund Bal 2,619,597     3,590,517     970,920       37.06% -                  63,216         63,216         #DIV/0! 2,619,597     3,653,733     1,034,136     39.48%

Adjustments -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  #DIV/0!

Adj Beg Fund Bal 2,619,597     3,590,517     970,920       37.06% -                  63,216         63,216         #DIV/0! 2,619,597     3,653,733     1,034,136     39.48%

End Fund Bal 2,865,599     3,773,820     908,221       31.69% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 2,865,599     3,773,820    908,221       31.69%

Non Spendable 500              500              -                  -                  500              500              -                  

Restricted  -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Comitted -                  #DIV/0! -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

OPEB 92,485         92,485         -                  -                  92,485         92,485         -                  

Assigned -                  #DIV/0! -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Deferred Maintenance -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

REU 328,000       372,000       44,000         -                  328,000       372,000       44,000         

Unassigned 2,444,614    3,308,835    864,221       35.35% -                 -                 -                 #DIV/0! 2,444,614    3,308,835    864,221       35.35%

REU is: 13.5% 13.5%

Tickmark Legend

Unrestricted Restricted Total

2021/22 First Interim Budget

Sierra County Office of Education

Gen Fund Budget Comparison Worksheet



1 Unrestricted certificated salaries increased by approx $46k for staffing addition.

2 Unrestricted statutory and health benefits increased approx $8k for STRS costs and approx $36k for H&W changes.

3 Unrestricted M&S increased approx $15k due to Prior Year Carryover in Unrestricted Lottery funding.

4 Unrestricted/Restricted Indirect Cost rate increases in budgeted expenditures.

5 Unrestricted funding transferred in increase approx $36k for Forest Reserve funding.

6 Restricted State revenue increased approx $10k for Educator Effectiveness, SpEd increased approx $7k for Dispute Prevention & Resolution, SpEd Learning Recovery increased approx $32k,

SpEd Mental Health svcs increased approx $1k, Foster Youth Direct Services increased approx $78k, ELO funding reduced approx ($53k) for PY C/O, County Safe Schools funding increase

approx $60k, CalOES increase approx $21k for PY C/O. 

7 Restricted M&S increase for Small Rural Schools approx $2k, restricted lottery increase approx $4k, CalOES increase approx $11k.

8 Restricted Operating expenditures increased approx $10k for Educator Effectiveness, SpEd increased approx $41k, Foster Youth Direct Svcs increased approx $76k, CalOES

increase approx $10k

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Sierra County Office of Education

2021/22 First Interim Budget



Sierra County Office of Education

2021/22 First Interim Budget

Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined

A B C D E F G H I

Revenues

LCFF Revenues 8010-8099 1,166,917     -               1,166,917       1,195,856    -             1,195,856    1,233,047    -              1,233,047     

Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -               173,931        173,931         -              173,931     173,931       -              173,931       173,931        

State Revenues 8300-8599 4,397            1,063,486     1,067,883       4,397           916,445     920,842       4,397           916,445       920,842        

Local Revenues 8600-8799 403,000        4,500           407,500         403,000       4,500         407,500       403,000       4,500           407,500        

Transfers In 8910-8979 56,697          -               56,697           56,697         -             56,697         56,697         -              56,697          

Contributions 8980-8999 (108,762)       108,762        -                 (219,040)      219,040     -              (242,958)      242,958       -               

Total Revenues 1,522,249    1,350,679    2,872,928      1,440,910    1,313,916   2,754,826    1,454,183    1,337,834    2,792,017    

Expenditures

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 295,886        360,587        656,473         381,375       295,798     677,173       388,921       308,254       697,175        

Classified Salaries 2000-2999 324,124        252,170        576,294         370,049       244,927     614,976       395,303       250,986       646,289        

Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 343,990        323,335        667,325         359,486       329,708     689,194       373,825       335,111       708,936        

Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 44,875          62,923         107,798         44,875         52,336       97,211         44,875         52,336         97,211          

Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 302,795        357,728        660,523         302,795       336,888     639,683       302,795       336,888       639,683        

Capital Outlay 6000-6599 35,000          -               35,000           35,000         -             35,000         35,000         -              35,000          

Other Outgo 7xxx's 24,428          25,000         49,428           24,428         25,000       49,428         24,428         25,000         49,428          

Other Outgo 7300-7399 (32,152)        32,152         -                 (29,259)        29,259       -              (29,259)        29,259         -               

Transfers Out 7600-7629 -               -               -                 -              -             -              -              -              -               

Total Expenditures 1,338,946    1,413,895     2,752,841      1,488,749    1,313,916   2,802,665    1,535,888    1,337,834    2,873,722    

Rev less Exp 183,303        (63,216)        120,087         (47,839)        -             (47,839)        (81,705)        -              (81,705)        

Change in Fund Bal 183,303       (63,216)        120,087         (47,839)       -            (47,839)       (81,705)       -              (81,705)        

Beg Fund Bal 3,590,517     63,216         3,653,733       3,773,820    -             3,773,820    3,725,981    -              3,725,981     

Adjustments -               -               -                 -             -              -              -               

Adj Beg Fund Bal 3,590,517     63,216         3,653,733       3,773,820    -             3,773,820    3,725,981    -              3,725,981     

End Fund Bal 3,773,820    -              3,773,820      3,725,981    -            3,725,981    3,644,276    -              3,644,276    

Non Spendable 500              -               500                500              -             500              500              -              500              

Restricted  -               -               -                 -             -              -              -               

Comitted

OPEB 92,485          -               92,485           92,485         -             92,485         92,485         -              92,485          

Assigned

REU 372,000        -               372,000         372,000       -             372,000       372,000       -              372,000        

Unassigned 3,308,835    -              3,308,835      3,353,481    -            3,353,481    3,271,776    -              3,271,776    

Budget MYP MYP

Multi Year Projection

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24



































































































































































































LEA Name:

Contact Name:

Email Address:

Phone Number:

Total Amount of funds received by the LEA:

Date of Public Meeting prior to Adoption:

Date of adoption at a public meeting:

EC 41480

Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021

Expenditure Plan Template

Sierra County Office of Education

Nona Griesert

ngriesert@spjusd.org

(530)993-1660

$ 10,340.00 

November 9, 2021

December 13, 2021

(a)(2) A school district, county office of education, charter school, or state special school may expend the funds received pursuant to this 

subdivision from the 2021–22 fiscal year to the 2025–26 fiscal year, inclusive. School districts, county offices of education, charter schools, and 

state special schools shall coordinate the use of any federal funds received under Title II of the federal Every Student Succeeds Act of 2015 

(Public Law 114–95) to support teachers and administrators with the expenditure of funds received pursuant to this subdivision.

(b) A school district, county office of education, charter school, or state special school shall expend funds apportioned pursuant to this section to

provide professional learning for teachers, administrators, paraprofessionals who work with pupils, and classified staff that interact with pupils,

with a focus on any of the following areas:

Educator Effectiveness Block Grant Expenditure Plan Page 1 of 6

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=41480.&lawCode=EDC
mailto:ngriesert@spjusd.org


Planned Activity

Budgeted

2021-22

Budgeted

2022-23

Budgeted

2023-24

Budgeted

2024-25

Budgeted

2025-26

Total Budgeted 

per Activity

Coaching, mentoring staff 10,340.00$     -$   -$   -$   -$   10,340.00$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal for this section: 10,340.00$     -$   -$   -$   -$   10,340.00$    

Planned Activity

Budgeted

2021-22

Budgeted

2022-23

Budgeted

2023-24

Budgeted

2024-25

Budgeted

2025-26

Total Budgeted

per Activity

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal for this section: -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

(1) Coaching and mentoring of staff serving in an instructional setting and beginning teacher or administrator induction, including, but not

limited to, coaching and mentoring solutions that address a local need for teachers that can serve all pupil populations with a focus on

retaining teachers, and offering structured feedback and coaching systems organized around social-emotional learning, including, but not

limited to, promoting teacher self-awareness, self-management, social awareness, relationships, and responsible decision-making skills,

improving teacher attitudes and beliefs about one's self and others, and supporting learning communities for educators to engage in a

meaningful classroom teaching experience.

(2) Programs that lead to effective, standards-aligned instruction and improve instruction in literacy across all subject areas, including English

language arts, history-social science, science, technology, engineering, mathematics, and computer science.

Educator Effectiveness Block Grant Expenditure Plan Page 2 of 6



Planned Activity

Budgeted

2021-22

Budgeted

2022-23

Budgeted

2023-24

Budgeted

2024-25

Budgeted

2025-26

Total Budgeted

per Activity

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal for this section: -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Planned Activity

Budgeted

2021-22

Budgeted

2022-23

Budgeted

2023-24

Budgeted

2024-25

Budgeted

2025-26

Total Budgeted

per Activity

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal for this section: -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Planned Activity

Budgeted

2021-22

Budgeted

2022-23

Budgeted

2023-24

Budgeted

2024-25

Budgeted

2025-26

Total Budgeted

per Activity

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal for this section: -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

(3) Practices and strategies that reengage pupils and lead to accelerated learning.

(4) Strategies to implement social-emotional learning, trauma-informed practices, suicide prevention, access to mental health services, and

other approaches that improve pupil well-being.

(5) Practices to create a positive school climate, including, but not limited to, restorative justice, training around implicit bias, providing

positive behavioral supports, multitiered systems of support, transforming a schoolsite's culture to one that values diverse cultural and ethnic

backgrounds, and preventing discrimination, harassment, bullying, and intimidation based on actual or perceived characteristics, including

disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, language, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, or sexual orientation.

Educator Effectiveness Block Grant Expenditure Plan Page 3 of 6



Planned Activity

Budgeted

2021-22

Budgeted

2022-23

Budgeted

2023-24

Budgeted

2024-25

Budgeted

2025-26

Total Budgeted

per Activity

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal for this section: -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Planned Activity

Budgeted

2021-22

Budgeted

2022-23

Budgeted

2023-24

Budgeted

2024-25

Budgeted

2025-26

Total Budgeted

per Activity

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal for this section: -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

(6) Strategies to improve inclusive practices, including, but not limited to, universal design for learning, best practices for early identification,

and development of individualized education programs for individuals with exceptional needs.

(7) Instruction and education to support implementing effective language acquisition programs for English learners, which may include

integrated language development within and across content areas, and building and strengthening capacity to increase bilingual and biliterate

proficiency.

Educator Effectiveness Block Grant Expenditure Plan Page 4 of 6



Planned Activity

Budgeted

2021-22

Budgeted

2022-23

Budgeted

2023-24

Budgeted

2024-25

Budgeted

2025-26

Total Budgeted

per Activity

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal for this section: -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Planned Activity

Budgeted

2021-22

Budgeted

2022-23

Budgeted

2023-24

Budgeted

2024-25

Budgeted

2025-26

Total Budgeted

per Activity

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal for this section: -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

(8) New professional learning networks for educators not already engaged in an education-related professional learning network to support

the requirements of subdivision (c).

(c) To ensure professional development meets educator and pupil needs, local educational agencies are encouraged to allow schoolsite and content staff to identify the topic or topics of 

professional learning. Professional learning provided pursuant to this section shall do both of the following:

 (1) Be content focused, incorporate active learning, support collaboration, use models of effective practice, provide coaching and expert support, offer feedback and reflection, and be of 

sustained duration.

 (2) As applicable, be aligned to the academic content standards adopted pursuant to Sections 51226, 60605, 60605.1, 60605.2, 60605.3, 60605.4, 60605.8, and 60605.11, and the model 

curriculum adopted pursuant to Section 51226.7, as those sections read on June 30, 2020, and former Section 60605.85, as that section read on June 30, 2014.

(9) Instruction, education, and strategies to incorporate ethnic studies curricula adopted pursuant to Section 51226.7 into pupil instruction for

grades 7 to 12, inclusive.

Educator Effectiveness Block Grant Expenditure Plan Page 5 of 6



Planned Activity

Budgeted

2021-22

Budgeted

2022-23

Budgeted

2023-24

Budgeted

2024-25

Budgeted

2025-26

Total Budgeted

per Activity

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

-$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal for this section: -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Section Totals

Budgeted

2021-22

Budgeted

2022-23

Budgeted

2023-24

Budgeted

2024-25

Budgeted

2025-26

Total Budgeted

per Activity

Subtotal Section (1) 10,340.00$     -$   -$   -$   -$   10,340.00$    

Subtotal Section (2) -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal Section (3) -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal Section (4) -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal Section (5) -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal Section (6) -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal Section (7) -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal Section (8) -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal Section (9) -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Subtotal Section (10) -$     -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    

Totals By Year: 10,340.00$     -$   -$   -$   -$   

(10) Instruction, education, and strategies for certificated and classified educators in early childhood education, or childhood development.

Summary of Expenditures

Total Planned Expenditures by the LEA:

$ 10,340.00 

Educator Effectiveness Block Grant Expenditure Plan Page 6 of 6



















Page 1 of 2 
 

CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET 
December 13, 2021 

 
Note:  Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 
board bylaws, and/or exhibits.  Editorial changes have also been made.  Districts and county offices of education 
should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly. 

 
NEW to SCOE/SPJUSD - Board Policy 6120 - Response to Instruction and Intervention 

Policy updated to emphasize the importance of learning and behavioral outcomes and progress monitoring 
as it relates to response to instruction and intervention (RtI2), reference multi-tiered system of supports 
(MTSS) and the integration of RtI2 into such frameworks, expand the list of individuals that may be included 
in designing the district's RtI2 system, add the examination of student social-emotional well-being as one of 
the bases for design, provide more detail regarding strategies and interventions including ten core components 
of the RtI2 model identified by the California Department of Education, and that RtI2 may be utilized as one 
component when considering the referral of a student for evaluation for special education or other services. 

 
 
Board Policy 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements 

Policy updated to clarify requirements for mathematics coursework, reflect NEW LAW (AB 104, 2021) 
which requires districts to exempt a student from district graduation requirements if the student was in the 
third or fourth year of high school during the 2020–21 school year and is not on track to graduate in four 
years, and to provide a student who was enrolled in the third or fourth year of high school during the 2020-
21 school year and is not on track to graduate in the 2020-21 or 2021–22 school years the opportunity to 
complete the statewide coursework required for graduation, which may include, but is not limited to, 
completion of the coursework through a fifth year of instruction, credit recovery, or other opportunity to 
complete the required coursework.   

 
Administrative Regulation 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements 

Regulation updated to include material regarding the provision of information about graduation requirements 
and credit recovery opportunities to students, parents/guardians, and the public, and to reflect requirements 
regarding the provision of notice to eligible students about the availability of exemptions from local 
graduation requirements when applicable. 

 
 
Board Policy 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education 

Policy updated to reference the U.S. Department of Education's (USDOE) Return to School Roadmap: Child 
Find Under Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act which reaffirms the obligation to fully 
implement the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) during the COVID-19 pandemic, 
including the requirement to meet child find obligations, and encourages districts to reexamine the efficacy 
of existing child find practices in light of the educational disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.   

 
Administrative Regulation 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education 

Regulation updated to reference USDOE's Return to School Roadmap: Child Find Under Part B of the 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act which recommends that districts undertake new child find 
activities in light of the educational disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic and emphasizes that 
students who are experiencing long-term COVID effects be referred for special education evaluation if their 
symptoms are adversely impacting their ability to participate and learn in the general curriculum. Regulation 
also updated to provide that the child find process includes the collection and screening of data to determine 
if students are making adequate progress, to include the district's obligation to ensure that evaluations of 
children suspected of having a disability are not delayed or denied because of the implementation of response 
to intervention strategies, clarify material regarding referrals for initial evaluations, evaluation plans and 
informed parent/guardian consent, reflect the timeline for the determination of whether the student is eligible 
for special education and the educational needs of the student and when an Individualized Education Program 
(IEP) meeting and the development of an IEP occurs, clarify the qualifications of personnel who administer 
evaluations and reevaluations, add that the normal process of second-language acquisition as well as 
manifestations of dialect and social linguistic variance not be diagnosed as a disabling condition, and clarify 
material regarding Independent Educational Evaluations. Regulation also updated to reference M.M. v. 
Lafayette School District, a Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals decision which held that the district violated 
IDEA when it failed to provide parents with their child's response to instruction (RTI) data when seeking 
informed consent for an initial evaluation.   

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
Board Policy 6164.5 - Student Success Teams  

Policy updated to reference that the student success team (SST) process is not required by law and that the 
policy reflects best practices, clarify those who are encouraged to collaborate in SSTs, include social and 
emotional difficulties when evaluating the strengths and needs of students and establishing interventions, 
emphasize the importance of each student maximizing their potential, specify who may refer students to 
SSTs, add types of materials appropriate for collection, analysis and review by the SST, provide for the 
development of a plan to support the student and adjustments to such plan, reflect that the SST process shall 
not delay or deny a referral for evaluation for eligibility for special education, reference MTSS and the 
integration of SSTs with such supports, and add staff development which may be provided to strengthen the 
effectiveness of SSTs.  
 

Administrative Regulation 6164.5 - Student Success Teams  
Regulation updated to reference that the SST process is not required by law and that the regulation reflects 
best practices, emphasize the importance of school counselors in the SST membership, provide that the 
makeup of each individual SST is at the district's discretion, reference the ability of districts to appoint a 
districtwide or schoolwide SST coordinator, identify teachers specifically as school staff with whom 
consultation may occur, add types of materials appropriate for collection to inform SST members, and add 
the development of a plan, and adjustments to the plan and related interventions, as one of the SST 
responsibilities.  
 



1 
**NEW** 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Policy 6120: Response to Instruction and Intervention Status: NEW 
  
 
 

Note:  The following policy is optional and should be modified to reflect district practice. 
 
Response to instruction and intervention (RtI2) is a strategy of organizing instruction and support resources in the 
general education program to help improve learning and behavioral outcomes for all students.  It allows for, based 
on individual student needs, early identification, intensive instruction and intervention, and progress monitoring 
for students who are struggling academically and/or behaviorally. 
 
Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) is described by the California Department of Education (CDE) as an 
integrated, comprehensive framework for districts that focuses on common core state standards, core instruction, 
differentiated and student-centered learning, individualized student needs, and the alignment of supports necessary 
for academic, behavioral, and social success.  MTSS is connected to the eight state priorities in the local control 
and accountability plan, and encompasses inclusive academic instruction as reflected in the California state 
standards and frameworks, RtI2, behavior instruction such as positive behavioral interventions and supports and 
restorative practices, and social-emotional learning.  Districts that have an established MTSS may integrate the 
RtI2 system into such framework. 

 
The Governing Board desires to improve learning and behavioral outcomes for all students by 
providing a high-quality, data-driven educational program that meets the learning and behavioral 
needs of each student and reduces disparities in achievement among subgroups of students.  
Students who are not making academic progress pursuant to district measures of performance 
and/or are struggling behaviorally shall receive intensive instruction and intervention supports 
designed to meet individual learning needs, with progress monitored. 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 0415 - Equity) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 6000 - Concepts and Roles) 
(cf. 6011- Academic Standards) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall convene a team that may include, as appropriate, staff with 
knowledge of curriculum and instruction, student services, special education, and instructional and 
behavioral support, certificated personnel, other district staff, and parents/guardians to assist in 
designing the district's Response to Instruction and Intervention (RtI2) system, based on an 
examination of indicators of district and schoolwide student achievement and social-emotional 
well-being. 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 
(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 
 



2 
 

The district's RtI2 system shall include instructional strategies and interventions with demonstrated 
effectiveness and be aligned with the district curriculum and assessments. The Superintendent or 
designee may conduct ongoing screening to determine student needs, analyze data, identify 
interventions for students not making adequate academic progress, monitor the effectiveness of 
the interventions, and adjust interventions according to efficacy. 
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 
(cf. 6142.91 - Reading/Language Arts Instruction) 
(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program) 
 
The district's RtI2 system shall include research-based, standards-based, culturally relevant 
instruction for students in the general education program; universal screening and continuous 
classroom monitoring to determine students' needs and to identify those students who are not 
making progress; criteria for determining the types and levels of interventions to be provided; and 
subsequent monitoring of student progress to determine the effectiveness of the intervention and 
to make changes as needed. 
 

Note:  CDE has identified ten core components of the RtI2 model, reflected below in Item #s 1-10.  CDE's web 
site contains resources for each listed component.  The remainder of this policy reflects these core components 
and should be modified to reflect district practice. 

 
Additionally, the districts RtI2 system shall provide for: 
 
1. High-quality classroom instruction 
 
2. High expectations 

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 

 
3. Assessments and data collection 
 
4. Problem-solving systems approach 
 
5. Research-based interventions 
 
6. Positive behavioral support 
 
7. Fidelity of program implementation 
 
8. Staff development and collaboration, which may include training in the use of assessments, 

data analysis, research-based instructional practices and strategies and emphasize a 
collaborative approach of professional learning communities among teachers within and 
across grade spans 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 



3 
 

 
9. Parent/guardian and family involvement, including collaboration and engagement 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that parents/guardians are involved at all 
stages of the instructional, intervention, and progress monitoring process.  
Parents/guardians shall be kept informed of the services that have and will be provided, the 
strategies being used to increase the student's rate of learning, the supports provided to 
improve behavioral difficulties, and the performance data that has and will be collected. 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 

 
Note:  RtI2 may reduce referrals for special education, including a reduction in the disproportionate representation of 
certain subpopulations of students identified as needing special education.  As part of the state's Quality Assurance 
Process, CDE will examine whether districts have a disproportionate representation of racial and ethnic groups in 
special education and related services that is the result of inappropriate identification. 
 
However, the U.S. Department of Education's Office of Special Education Programs Memorandum 11-07 states that 
districts have an obligation to ensure that evaluations of students suspected of having learning disabilities are not 
delayed or denied due to implementation of response to intervention (RTI) strategies.  Additionally, in M.M. v. 
Lafayette School District, the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals held that the district violated the Individuals with 
Disabilities Education Act procedural requirements by failing to ensure that RTI data was documented and carefully 
considered by the entire individualized education program team, and failing to provide the parents with the RTI data, 
resulting in the parents being unable to give informed consent for both the initial evaluation and the special education 
services, even when the district did not use the RTI data to determine eligibility.  See AR 6164.4 - Identification and 
Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education. 
 
10. Consideration of further evaluation utilizing RtI2 data 
 

The RtI2 system may be utilized as one component when considering the referral of a 
student for evaluation for special education or other services. 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students) 
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 
(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 

 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
56329  Assessment, written notice to parent 
56333-56338  Eligibility for specific learning disabilities 
56500-56509  Procedural safeguards 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1400-1482  Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, especially: 
1416  Monitoring, technical assistance, and enforcement 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
300.301-300.11  Evaluations, reevaluations, and additional procedures for identifying children with 
specific learning disabilities 
COURT DECISIONS 
M.M. v. Lafayette School District (9th Cir. 2014) 767 F.3d 842 
 
 



4 
 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Best Practices in Special Education, Governance Brief, May 2019 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Disproportionality Calculation Methodologies 
NATIONAL COUNCIL ON DISABILITY PUBLICATIONS 
IDEA Series:  Every Student Succeeds Act and Students with Disabilities, February 2018 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Return to School Roadmap:  Child Find Under Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, 
August 2021 
A Response to Intervention (RTI) Process Cannot Be Used to Delay-Deny an Evaluation for Eligibility 
under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA):  Memorandum 11-07, January 2011 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
National Center for Learning Disabilities RTI Action Network:  http://www.rtinetwork.org 
National Council on Disability:  https://ncd.gov 
U.S. Department of Education:  http://www.ed.gov 



1 
**Revisions** 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Policy 6146.1: High School Graduation Requirements Status: ADOPTED 
Original Adopted Date: 04/10/2007 | Last Revised Date: 04/13/2021 | Last Reviewed Date: 04/13/2021  
 

Note:  The following policy is for use by districts that maintain grades 9-12. 
 
The Governing Board desires to prepare all students to successfully complete the high school course of 
study and obtain a diploma that represents their educational achievement and increases their 
opportunities for postsecondary education and employment. 
(cf. 5127 - Graduation Ceremonies and Activities) 
(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
(cf. 6146.3 - Reciprocity of Academic Credit) 
 
Course Requirements 
 

Note:  Education Code 51225.3 specifies the courses that a student is required to complete in order to graduate from 
high school as listed in items #1-6 below. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 66204, each district that maintains a high school is also required to develop a process for 
submitting courses to the University of California to ensure that they align with the "a-g" course requirements for 
college admission. 

 
To obtain a high school diploma, students shall complete the following courses in grades 9-12, with 
each course being one year unless otherwise specified: 
 

1. Four courses in English   (Education Code 51225.3) 
(cf. 6142.91 - Reading/Language Arts Instruction) 
 

2. Three courses in mathematics   (Education Code 51225.3) 
 
Students shall complete at least one mathematics course, or a combination of the two 
mathematics courses, shall meet or exceed that meets the state academic content standards for 
Algebra I or Mathematics I. Completion of  Students may complete such coursework prior to 
grade 9 shall satisfy the Algebra I or Mathematics I requirement, but shall not exempt a student from 
the requirement toprovided that they also complete two mathematics courses in grades 9-
12.   (Education Code 51224.5) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 51225.3 and 51225.35, a district that requires more than two courses in mathematics 
may award up to one mathematics course credit for an approved computer science course, as defined. Any such course 
must have been approved by the University of California as a "category c" (mathematics) course in the university's "a-g" 
course admission criteria; see BP 6143 - Courses of Study. 

 
Students may be awarded up to one mathematics course credit for successful completion of an 
approved computer science course that is classified as a "category c" course based on the "a-g" 
course requirements for college admission. , which may be counted toward additional 
graduation requirements in mathematics.  (Education Code 51225.3, 51225.35) 
(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 
(cf. 6152.1 - Placement in Mathematics Courses) 
 



2 
 

3. Two courses in science, including biological and physical sciences   (Education Code 51225.3) 
(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 
 

4. Three courses in social studies, including United States history and geography; world history, 
culture, and geography; a one-semester course in American government and civics; and a one-
semester course in economics   (Education Code 51225.3) 
(cf. 6142.3 - Civic Education) 
(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 
 

Note:  Education Code 51225.3 authorizes the Board to include a course in career technical education (CTE) as an 
alternative to the visual or performing arts or world language course requirement for high school graduation.  If the 
Board chooses to do so, it must, at a regular Board meeting prior to allowing a CTE course as an alternative, notify 
parents/guardians, students, teachers, and the public of information specified in Education Code 51225.3.  In addition, 
the information must be included in the district's annual notification to parents/guardians pursuant to Education Code 
48980; see the accompanying administrative regulation.  Districts that do not allow this alternative course requirement 
should delete references to CTE in item #5.         below. 
 
The CTE course may be offered through different means, including a district-operated program, regional occupational 
center or program, or county office of education program pursuant to a joint powers agreement.  See BP/AR 6178 - 
Career Technical Education and BP 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program for program details pertaining to 
CTE. 

 
5. One course in visual or performing arts, world language, or career technical education 

(CTE).   For purposes of this requirement, a course in American Sign Language shall be 
deemed a course in world language.   (Education Code 51225.3) 
 
To be counted towards meeting graduation requirements, a CTE course shall be aligned to the 
CTE model curriculum standards and framework adopted by the State Board of 
Education.   (Education Code 51225.3) 
(cf. 6142.2 - World Language Instruction) 
(cf. 6142.6 - Visual and Performing Arts Education) 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 
 

6. Two courses in physical education, unless the student has been otherwise exempted pursuant to 
other sections of the Education Code   (Education Code 51225.3) 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 
(cf. 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction) 
(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 51225.3, the Board may prescribe additional coursework (e.g., health education or 
service learning) or other requirements (e.g., portfolios or senior projects) that district students must complete in order 
to obtain a diploma. If the Board does so, such courses or projects should be listed below. 
 
If the district requires a course in health education for graduation, Education Code 51225.36 requires that the district 
include instruction in sexual harassment and violence, including, but not limited to, information on the affirmative 
consent standard pursuant to Education Code 67386. See BP 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention 
Instruction.  In addition, pursuant to Education Code 51225.6, a district that requires a course in health education for 
graduation is required to include instruction in compression-only cardiopulmonary resuscitation.  See AR 6143 - 
Courses of Study. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 51230, if the district requires the completion of community service hours for high school 
graduation, the district may provide a student with credit towards that requirement for completion of a course in 
community emergency response training.  However, if the district chooses to offer credit for the completion of such a 
course, the Board is still obligated to notify parents/guardians, students, teachers, and the public of information specified 
in Education Code 51225.3. 



3 
 

 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

3.7. Senior Project 
 

4.8.Completion, in grade 12 or academic equivalent, one senior project, the requirements of which are 
determined and outlined by the high school faculty and administration, to include a research paper, 
project activity and formal presentation. 
 
With the inception of a 7 period schedule, the unit requirements for Loyalton High School are: 
 
Class of 2019 - One year 7 periods, 3 years 8 periods - 300 Credits 

       Class of 2020 - Two years 7 periods, 2 years 8 periods - 290 Credits 
       Class of 2021 - Three Years 7 periods, 1 year 8 periods - 275 Credits 
       Class of 2022 - All 4 years 7 periods - 260 Credits 
 
       All district schools on an 8 period day shall remain at 300 Credits. 

 
Note:  Education Code 51225.3 requires the Board to adopt alternative means for students to complete the prescribed 
course of study.  See BP/AR 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation. 

 
Because the prescribed course of study may not accommodate the needs of some students, the Board 
shall provide alternative means for the completion of prescribed courses in accordance with law. 
(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation) 
(cf. 6146.2 - Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency) 
(cf. 6146.4 - Differential Graduation and Competency Standards for Students with Disabilities) 
 
Exemptions from District-Adopted Graduation Requirements 
 

Note:  Education Code 51225.1 requires the district to exempt from any district-adopted graduation requirements that 
are in addition to the state requirements specified in Education Code 51225.3 a foster youth, homeless student, former 
juvenile court school student, child of a military family, or migrant student who transfers into the district or between 
district high schools any time after completing the second year of high school, or an immigrant student who is in the 
third or fourth year of high school and is participating in a newcomer program (i.e., a program designed to meet the 
academic and transitional needs of newly arrived immigrant students that has as a primary objective the development of 
English language proficiency). This exemption does not apply if the Superintendent or designee makes a finding that the 
student is reasonably able to complete the requirements in time to graduate by the end of the fourth year of high school. 
Also see AR 6173 - Education for Homeless Children, AR 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth, AR 6173.2 - Education 
of Children of Military Families, AR 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students, and AR 6175 - Migrant 
Education Program. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 51225.1, within 30 calendar days of the transfer of a foster youth, homeless student, former 
juvenile court school student, child of a military family, or migrant student, or within 30 days of a student beginning 
participation in a newcomer program, the district is required to provide notice to the student, the person holding the right 
to make education decisions for the student, and the student's social worker or probation officer of the availability of the 
exemption and whether the student qualifies for it.  If the district fails to provide that notification, the student will be 
eligible for the exemption once notified, even if the notification is received after the termination of the court's 
jurisdiction over the foster youth or former juvenile court school student, after the homeless student ceases to be 
homeless, or after the student no longer meets the definition of a child of a military family, a migrant student, or a 
student participating in a newcomer program, as applicable. 
 
Education Code 51225.1 also provides that, if an exempted student completes the statewide coursework requirements 
before the end of the fourth year of high school, the district or a district school must not require or request that the 
student graduate before the end of the fourth year of high school. 
 



4 
 

Any complaint alleging the district's failure to comply with the requirements of Education Code 51225.1 may be filed 
using the district's uniform complaint procedures pursuant to 5 CCR 4600-4670.  See BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform 
Complaint Procedures. 

 
District students are required to complete graduation course requirements specified above, including 
the requirements imposed by Education Code 51225.3 and those adopted by the Board. However, a 
foster youth, homeless student, former juvenile court school student, child of a military family, or 
migrant student who transfers into the district or between district schools any time after completing the 
second year of high school, or a newly arrived immigrant student who is in the third or fourth year of 
high school and is participating in a newcomer program, shall be exempted from any graduation 
requirements adopted by the Board that are in addition to statewide course requirements. This 
exemption shall not apply if the Superintendent or designee makes a finding that the student is 
reasonably able to complete the requirements in time to graduate by the end of the fourth year of high 
school. 
 
Within 30 days of the transfer into a school or of the commencement of participation in a newcomer 
program, as applicable, the Superintendent or designee shall notify any eligible student of the 
availability of the exemption and whether the student qualifies for it.   (Education Code 51225.1) 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 
(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 51225, as added by AB 104 (Ch. 41, Statutes of 2021), the district is required to 
exempt a student from district graduation requirements if the student was in the third or fourth year of high school 
during the 2020-21 school year and is not on track to graduate in four years. 

 
If during the 2020-21 school year a student was in the third or fourth year of high school and is not on 
track to graduate in four years, the district shall exempt the student from any local graduation 
requirements adopted by the Board that are in addition to statewide course requirements specified in 
Education Code 51225.3.  (Education Code 51225) 
 
Additional Opportunities to Complete Required Coursework 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 51225, as added by AB 104, the district is required to provide a student who was 
enrolled in the student's third or fourth year of high school during the 2020-21 school year and is not on track to 
graduate in the 2020-21 or 2021-22 school years the opportunity to complete the statewide coursework required for 
graduation pursuant to Education Code 51225.3, as described below. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide a student who was enrolled in the third or fourth year of 
high school during the 2020-21 school year and is not on track to graduate in the 2020-21 or 2021-22 
school years the opportunity to complete the statewide coursework required for graduation, which may 
include, but is not limited to, completion of the coursework through a fifth year of instruction, credit 
recovery, or other opportunity to complete the required coursework.  (Education Code 51225) 
 
Retroactive Diplomas 
 
Any student who completed grade 12 in the 2003-04 through 2014-15 school year and met all 
applicable graduation requirements other than the passage of the high school exit examination shall be 
granted a high school diploma.   (Education Code 51413) 
 



5 
 

Note:  Items #1-4 below are optional and may be revised to reflect district practice. 
 
In addition, the district may retroactively grant high school diplomas to former students 
who:   (Education Code 48204.4, 51430, 51440) 
 
1.         Departed California against their will while in grade 12 and did not receive a diploma because 

the departure interrupted their education, provided that they were in good academic standing at 
the time of the departure 
 
Persons may be considered to have departed California against their will if they were in custody 
of a government agency and were transferred to another state, were subject to a lawful order 
from a court or government agency that authorized their removal from California, were subject 
to a lawful order and were permitted to depart California before being removed from California 
pursuant to the lawful order, were removed or were permitted to depart voluntarily pursuant to 
the federal Immigration and Nationality Act, or departed due to other circumstances determined 
by the district that are consistent with the purposes of Education Code 48204.4. 
 

 In determining whether to award a diploma under these circumstances, the Superintendent or 
designee shall consider any coursework that may have been completed outside of the United 
States or through online or virtual courses. 
 

2.         Were interned by order of the federal government during World War II or are honorably 
discharged veterans of World War II, the Korean War, or the Vietnam War, provided that they 
were enrolled in a district school immediately preceding the internment or military service and 
did not receive a diploma because their education was interrupted due to the internment or 
military service in those wars 
 

 Deceased former students who satisfy these conditions may be granted a retroactive diploma to 
be received by their next of kin. 
 

3.         Are veterans who entered the military service of the United States while in grade 12 and who 
had satisfactorily completed the first half of the work required for grade 12 in a district school 
 

Note:  Education Code 51430, as amended by AB 1350 (Ch. 66, Statutes of 2020), authorizes districts to award a 
retroactive diploma under the circumstances described in item #4 below. 

 
4. Were in their senior year of high school during the 2019-20 school year, were in good academic 

standing and on track to graduate at the end of the 2019-20 school year as of March 1, 2020, 
and were unable to complete the statewide graduation requirements as a result of the COVID-
19 crisis 
 

Honorary Diplomas 
 

Note:  The following optional section reflects the Board's authority to confer honorary high school diplomas pursuant to 
Education Code 51225.5 and may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
The Board may grant an honorary high school diploma to:   (Education Code 51225.5) 
 
1.         An international exchange student who has not completed the course of study ordinarily 

required for graduation and who is returning to the student's home country following the 
completion of one academic school year in the district 



6 
 

(cf. 6145.6 - International Exchange) 
 

2.         A student who is terminally ill 
 

The honorary diploma shall be clearly distinguishable from the regular diploma of graduation awarded 
by the district.   (Education Code 51225.5) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
47612  Enrollment in charter school 
48200  Compulsory attendance 
48204.4  Parents/guardians departing California against their will 
48412  Certificate of proficiency 
48430  Continuation education schools and classes 
48645.5  Acceptance of coursework 
48980  Required notification at beginning of term 
49701  Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children 
51224  Skills and knowledge required for adult life 
51224.5  Algebra instruction 
51225  2020-21 exemption from graduation requirements 
51225.1  Exemption from district graduation requirements 
51225.2  Student in foster care defined; acceptance of coursework, credits, retaking of course 
51225.3  High school graduation 
51225.35  Mathematics course requirements; computer science 
51225.36  Instruction in sexual harassment and violence; districts that require health education for graduation 
51225.5  Honorary diplomas 
51225.6  Compression-only cardiopulmonary resuscitation 
51228  Graduation requirements 
51230  Credit for community emergency response training 
51240-51246  Exemptions from requirements 
51250-51251  Assistance to military dependents 
51410-51413  Diplomas 
51420-51427  High school equivalency certificates 
51430  Retroactive high school diplomas 
51440  Retroactive high school diplomas 
51450-51455  Golden State Seal Merit Diploma 
51745  Independent study restrictions 
56390-56392  Recognition for educational achievement, special education 
66204  Certification of high school courses as meeting university admissions criteria 
67386  Student safety; affirmative consent standard 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
1600-1651  Graduation of students from grade 12 and credit toward graduation 
4600-4670  Uniform complaint procedures 
COURT DECISIONS 
O'Connell v. Superior Court (Valenzuela), (2006) 141 Cal.App.4th 1452 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education, High School:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/gs/hs 
University of California, List of Approved a-g Courses: 
https://admission.universityofcalifornia.edu/admission-requirements/freshman-requirements 



1 
**Revisions** 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Regulation 6146.1: High School Graduation Requirements Status: ADOPTED 
Original Adopted Date: 11/13/2007 | Last Revised Date: 05/08/2012  
 

Note:  The following administrative regulation is optional and should be modified to reflect district practice. 
 
Notifications 
 

Note:  Districts are encouraged to provide notice to students, parents/guardians, and the public regarding the exemptions 
from graduation requirements and credit recovery opportunities pursuant to Education Code 51225, as added by AB 104 
(Ch. 41, Statutes of 2021); see the accompanying Board policy. 

 
Requirements for graduation and, specified alternative means for completing the prescribed course of 
study, and information about the availability of exemptions from local graduation requirements and/or 
credit recovery options available pursuant to Education Code 51225 shall be made available to students, 
parents/guardians, and the public. (Education Code 51225.3) 
 
Within 30 days of the transfer into a school by a foster youth, homeless student, former juvenile court 
school student, child of a military family, migrant student, or a newly arrived immigrant student, the 
Superintendent or designee shall notify any eligible student of the availability of the exemption from 
local graduation requirements under Education Code 51225.1 and whether the student qualifies for it.  
(Education Code 51225.1) 
(cf. 6145.6 - International Exchange) 
(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation) 
(cf. 6145.6 - International Exchange) 
(cf. 6146.2 - Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph is for use by any district that has elected to allow students to complete a career 
technical education course as an alternative to the visual or performing arts or foreign language course requirement for 
high school graduation pursuant to Education Code 51225.3; see accompanying Board policy. 

 
In the annual notification sent to parents/guardians pursuant to Education Code 48980, the 
Superintendent or designee shall include the following:  (Education Code 48980) 
 
1.  Information about district high school graduation requirements and how each requirement 

satisfies or does not satisfy the subject matter requirements for admission to the California State 
University and the University of California 

 
2.  A complete list of career technical education courses offered by the district that satisfy the subject 

matter requirements for admission to the California State University and the University of 
California, and which of the specific college admission requirements these courses satisfy 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 

 





1 
**Revisions** 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Policy 6164.4:  
Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education 

Status: ADOPTED 

Original Adopted Date: 04/10/2007 | Last Revised Date: 06/14/2011  
 

Note:  If the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) in which the district participates maintains a policy on this 
topic, then the following policy and administrative regulation may be deleted and/or modified for consistency with the 
SELPA's procedures.  Districts that delete and/or modify this policy should consult legal counsel as appropriate. 
 
Education Code 56300 and 34 CFR 300.111 require each district, SELPA, or county office of education to actively seek 
out all residents from birth to age 21 who have disabilities as defined by Education Code 56026. The district, SELPA, or 
county office is also required to include a "child find" process to identify children with disabilities placed by their 
parents/guardians in private schools; see BP/AR 6164.41 - Children with Disabilities Enrolled by Their Parents in Private 
Schools. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 56320.1, identification, evaluation, assessment, and instructional planning procedures for 
children younger than age 3 must conform with Education Code 56425-56432 and the California Early Intervention 
Services Act (Government Code 95000-95029).  Pursuant to Government Code 95014, the California Department of 
Education and local education agencies are responsible for providing early intervention services to infants and toddlers 
who have visual, hearing, or severe orthopedic impairments; the Department of Developmental Services and its regional 
centers must provide services to all other eligible children in this age group.  Government Code 95014 also requires 
regional centers and local education agencies to coordinate family service plans for infants and toddlers and their families.  
Education Code 56441.11 sets forth eligibility criteria for preschool children ages 3-5. 

 
The Governing Board recognizes the need to actively seek out and evaluate district residents from birth 
to age 21 who have disabilities in order to provide them with appropriate educational opportunities in 
accordance with state and federal law. 
(cf. 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education) 
(cf. 6164.41 - Children with Disabilities Enrolled by Their Parents in Private School) 
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 
 

Note:  Education Code 56301 mandates that districts, SELPAs, or county offices have policies and procedures for a 
continuous "child find" system which addresses the relationships among identification, screening, referral, evaluation, 
planning, implementation, review, and triennial assessment. 
 
The U.S. Department of Education's Office of Special Education Programs (OSEP) has emphasized that districts are 
required to fully implement the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) during the COVID-19 pandemic, 
including the requirement to meet child find obligations.  In the Return to School Roadmap:  Child Find Under Part B of 
the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, OSEP encourages districts to reexamine the efficacy of existing child find 
practices in light of the educational disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 56302.5, the term "assessment" as used in state law has the same meaning as "evaluation" 
provided in 20 USC 1414, the federal IDEA and accompanying federal regulations. The following policy and 
administrative regulation use the terms interchangeably. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish a comprehensive child find system that includes 
procedures for the identification, screening, referral, and regularassessment, and triennial assessment of 
individuals eligible for special education, as well as procedures for the planning, implementation, and 
review of the special education and related services provided to such individuals.  (Education Code 
56301) 
 
The district's identification procedures shall include systematic methods for utilizing referrals from 
parents/guardians, teachers, agencies, appropriate professionals, and othersother members of the public, 



2 
 

and shall be coordinated with school site procedures for referral of students whose needs cannot be met 
with modifications to the regular instructional program.  (Education Code 56302) 
 

Note:  Education Code 56301 mandates policy ensuring the following notification.  See the accompanying administrative 
regulation for specific notification requirements. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians, in writing, of their rights related to 
identification, referral, assessment, instructional planning, implementation, and review, including the 
right to consent to any assessment concerning their child.  In addition, the Superintendent or designee 
shall notify parents/guardians of procedures for initiating a referral for assessment to identify individuals 
who needfor special education services.  (Education Code 56301) 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 3541.2 - Transportation for Students with Disabilities) 
(cf. 4112.23 - Special Education Staff) 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
(cf. 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education) 
(cf. 6159.2 - Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency Services for Special Education) 
(cf. 6159.3 - Appointment of Surrogate Parent for Special Education Students) 
(cf. 6162.51 - Standardized Testing and Reporting ProgramState Academic Achievement Tests) 
(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
44265.5  Professional preparation for teachers of impaired students 
56000-56885  Special education programs, especially: 
56043  Timelines affecting special education programs 
56195.8  Adoption of policies 
56300-56305  Identification of individuals with disabilities 
56320-56330  Assessment 
56333-56338  Eligibility criteria for specific learning disabilities 
56340-56347  Instructional planning and individualized education program 
56381  Reassessment of students 
56425-56432  Early education for individuals with disabilities 
56441.11  Eligibility criteria, children ages 3-5 
56445  Transition to grade school; reassessment 
56500-56509  Procedural safeguards 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
95000-95029.5  California Early Intervention Services Act 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
3021-3029  Identification, referral and assessment 
3030-3031  Eligibility criteria 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 
1400-1482  Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, especially: 
1412  State eligibility 
1415  Procedural safeguards 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
104.35  Evaluation and placement 
104.36  Procedural safeguards 
300.1-300.818  Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, especially: 
300.301-300.306  Evaluations and reevaluations 
300.323  When IEPs must be in effect 
300.502  Independent educational evaluation 
FEDERAL REGISTER 
Rules and Regulations, August 14, 2006, Vol. 71, Number 156, pages 46539-46845 



3 
 

COURT DECISIONS 
Timothy O. v. Paso Robles Unified School District (9th Cir. 2016) 822 F.3d 1105 
M.M. v. Lafayette School District (9th Cir. 2014) 767 F.3d 842 
Compton Unified School District v. Addison, (9th Cir. 2010) 598 F.3d 1181 
N.B. and C.B v. Hellgate Elementary School District (9th Cir. 2008) 541 F.3d 1202 
Hood v. Encinitas Union School District (2007) 486 F.3d 1099 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
California Practitioners' Guide for Educating English Learners with Disabilities, 2019 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Return to School Roadmap:  Child Find Under Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, August 
2021 
Long COVID under Section 504 and the IDEA:  A Resource to Support Children, Students, Educators, Schools, 
Service Providers, and Families, July 2021 
A Response to Intervention (RTI) Process Cannot Be Used to Delay-Deny an Evaluation for Eligibility under the 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA):  Memorandum 11-07, January 2011 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Education, Special Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se 
U.S. Department of Education, Office of Special Education Programs:  
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osers/osep 





1 
**Revisions** 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Regulation 6164.4:  
Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education 

Status: ADOPTED 

Original Adopted Date: 04/10/2007 | Last Revised Date: 06/14/2011  
 
Referrals for Special Education Services 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 56303, a student should be referred for special education instruction and services only 
after the resources of the regular education program such as Response to Instruction and Intervention (RtI2) strategies 
have been considered and, where appropriate, utilized.  However, the U.S. Department of Education's Office of Special 
Education Programs (OSEP) Memorandum 11-07 emphasizes that districts have an obligation to ensure that evaluations 
of children suspected of having a disability are not delayed or denied because of the implementation of response to 
intervention strategies. 
 
In the Return to School Roadmap:  Child Find Under Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, OSEP 
encourages districts to reexamine the efficacy of existing child find practices and initiate new activities in light of the 
educational disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, including through additional screenings; efforts to increase 
awareness about special education supports and the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on students' academic performance 
and social-emotional, behavioral, and mental health needs; public awareness campaigns about developmental screenings 
in settings frequented by families such as health departments, physician's offices, public parks, amusement parks, 
shopping malls, and children's stores; social media campaigns on multiple online platforms; partnering with stakeholders 
such as parent-teacher organizations; and holding screening events in the community. 
 
Additionally, OSEP emphasizes that students who are experiencing long-term COVID-19 effects must be referred for 
special education evaluation if their symptoms (such as fatigue, mood changes, or difficulty concentrating) are adversely 
impacting their ability to participate and learn in the general curriculum. 
 
The obligation of a district to refer a student for special education evaluation is a fact-specific determination that must be 
made on a case-by-case basis. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's child find process includes the collection 
of data and, at reasonable intervals, the screening of such data to determine if students are making 
adequate progress, as appropriate. 
 
A student shall be referred for special education instruction and services only after the resources of the 
regular education program have been considered and used where appropriate.  (Education Code 56303) 
All referrals from school staff for special education and related services 
However, the district shall ensure that evaluations of children suspected of having a disability are not 
delayed or denied because of the implementation of response to intervention strategies. 
(cf. 6120 - Response to Instruction and Intervention) 
(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to 34 CFR 300.301, a parent/guardian or district may request an initial evaluation to determine if a student 
is a student with a disability.  OSEP Memorandum 11-07 emphasizes that if a parent/guardian requests an evaluation, and 
the district agrees with the parent/guardian that the student may be eligible for special education and related services, the 
district must evaluate the child.  If the district does not suspect that the child has a disability and denies the request for an 
initial evaluation, the district must provide written notice to the parent/guardian, pursuant to 34 CFR 330.503, explaining 
the basis for such decision. 

 
A parent/guardian or the district may initiate a request for an initial evaluation to determine if the student 
is a student with a disability.  (34 CFR 300.301) 
 



2 
 

When a verbal referral is made, staff shall offer assistance to the individual to make the request in writing 
and shall assist the individual if the individual requests such assistance.  (5 CCR 3021) 
 
All referrals from school staff for an initial evaluation shall include a brief reason for the referral and 
description of the regular program resources that were considered and/or modified for use with the 
student and their effect., when appropriate, the results of intervention.  This documentation shall not delay 
the timelines for completing the assessment plan or assessment.  (5 CCR 3021) 
 
Initial Evaluation for Special Education Services 
 
Before the initial provision of special education and related services to a student with a disability, the 
district shall conduct a full and individual initial evaluation of the student.  (Education Code 56320; 34 
CFR 300.301) 
 
Upon receipt of a referral of any student for special education and related services, a proposed evaluation 
plan shall be developed within 15 calendar days, not counting days between the student's regular school 
sessions or terms or calendar days of school vacation in excess of five school days, unless the 
parent/guardian agrees, in writing, to an extension.  If the referral is made within 10 days or less prior to 
the end of the student's regular school year or term, the proposed evaluation plan shall be developed 
within 10 days after the beginning of the next regular school year or term.  (Education Code 56043, 
56321) 
 
The proposed evaluation plan shall meet all of the following requirements:  (Education Code 56321) 
 
1.  Be in a language easily understood by the general public 
 

Note:  34 CFR 300.29 defines "native language" as the language normally used by the individual. 
 
2.  Be provided in the native language of the parent/guardian or other mode of communication used 

by the parent/guardian unless it is clearly not feasible 
 
3.  Explain the types of evaluation to be conducted 
 
4.  State that no individualized education program (IEP) will result from the evaluation without 

parent/guardian consent 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 

 
A copy of the notice of a parent/guardian's rights and procedural safeguards shall be attached to the 
evaluation plan.  (Education Code 56321) 
 
The proposed written evaluation plan shall include a description of recent assessments conducted, 
including available independent assessments and assessment information requested by the 
parent/guardian to be considered, as well as information indicating the student's primary language and 
the student's primary language proficiency as determined by Education Code section 52164.1.  (5 CCR 
3022) 
 

Note:  34 CFR 300.504 requires the district to provide parents/guardians with written notice prior to conducting the initial 
evaluation.  For contents of the prior written notice, see AR 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special 
Education. 
 



3 
 

Education Code 56329 clarifies the factors to consider when making a determination of eligibility (Item #2 below) and 
specifies circumstances in which a parent/guardian may be entitled to an independent educational evaluation (IEE) (Items 
#4 and #5 below). 

 
Before conducting an initial evaluation, the district shall provide the parent/guardian with prior written 
notice in accordance with 34 CFR 300.503.  In addition, as part of the evaluation plan, the 
parent/guardian shall receive written notice that includes all of the following information:  (Education 
Code 56329; 34 CFR 300.304, 300.502, 300.504) 
 
1.  Upon completion of the administration of tests and other evaluation materials, an IEP team 

meeting that includes the parent/guardian or his/herthe parent/guardian's representative shall be 
scheduled pursuant to Education Code 56341.  At this meeting, the team shall determine whether 
or not the student is a student with disabilities, as defined in Education Code 56026, and shall 
discuss the evaluation, the educational recommendations, and the reasons for the 
recommendations. 

 
2.  When making a determination of eligibility for special education, the district shall not determine 

that the student is disabled if the primary factor for such determination is lack of appropriate 
instruction in reading, including the essential components of reading instruction as defined in 20 
USC 6368, lack of appropriate instruction in mathematics, or limited English proficiency, if the 
student does not otherwise meet the eligibility criteria under 34 CFR 300.8. 

 
3.  A copy of the evaluation report and the documentation of determination of eligibility shall be 

given to the parent/guardian. 
 
4.  If the parent/guardian disagrees with an evaluation obtained by the district, he/shethe 

parent/guardian has the right to obtain, at public expense, an independent educational evaluation 
(IEE) of the student from qualified specialists, in accordance with 34 CFR 300.502.  The 
parent/guardian is entitled to only one such evaluation at public expense each time the district 
conducts an assessment with which the parent/guardian disagrees. 

 
 If the district observed the student in conducting its evaluation, or if its evaluation procedures 

make it permissible to have in-class observation of the student, an equivalent opportunity shall 
apply to the IEE.  This equivalent opportunity shall apply to the student's current placement and 
setting as well as observation of the district's proposed placement and setting, if any, regardless 
of whether the IEE is initiated before or after the filing of a due process hearing proceeding. 

 
5.  The district may initiate a due process hearing pursuant to Education Code 56500-56508 to show 

that its evaluation is appropriate.  If the final decision resulting from the due process hearing is 
that the evaluation is appropriate, the parent/guardian maintains the right for an IEE, but not at 
public expense. 

 
 If the parent/guardian obtains an IEE at private expense, the results of the IEE shall be considered 

by the district with respect to the provision of a free appropriate public education (FAPE) to the 
student, and may be presented as evidence at a due process hearing regarding the student.  If the 
district observed the student in conducting its evaluation, or if its evaluation procedures make it 
permissible to have in-class observation of a student, an equivalent opportunity shall apply to an 
IEE of the student in the student's current educational placement and setting and in any 
educational placement and setting proposed by the district, regardless of whether the IEE is 
initiated before or after the filing of a due process hearing. 



4 
 

 
6.  If the parent/guardian proposes a publicly financed placement of the student in a nonpublic 

school, the district shall have an opportunity to observe the proposed placement and, if the student 
has already been unilaterally placed in the nonpublic school by his/herthe student's 
parent/guardian, the student in that proposed placement.  Any such observation shall only be of 
the student who is the subject of the observation and shall not include the observation or 
evaluation of any other student in the proposed placement unless that other student's 
parent/guardian consents to the observation or evaluation.  The results of any observation or 
evaluation of another student in violation of Education Code 56329(d) shall be inadmissible in 
any due process or judicial proceeding regarding FAPE of that other student. 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
(cf. 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education) 
(cf. 6164.41 - Children with Disabilities Enrolled by their Parents in Private School) 

 
Parent/Guardian Consent for Evaluations 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 56321 and 34 CFR 300.300, the district must first obtain informed parent/guardian 
consent before conducting (1) an initial evaluation to determine if the student is a student with a disability or (2) a 
reevaluation to determine if the student continues to be a student with a disability.  See AR 6159 - Individualized Education 
Program for language regarding parent/guardian consent for the provision of special education services, including the 
right to revoke such consent. 
 
In M.M. v. Lafayette School District, the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals concluded that the district had a procedural duty 
to provide the parents with their child's response to instruction (RTI) data when the district sought to obtain their informed 
consent for the initial evaluation.  The district's failure to provide the parents with the RTI data as part of the initial 
evaluation resulted not only in a procedural violation but also a substantive violation of the Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Act since the failure prevented the parents from meaningfully participating in the IEP process. 

 
Upon receiving the proposed evaluation plan, the parent/guardian shall have at least 15 days to decide 
whether or not to consent to the initial evaluation.  The district shall not interpret parent/guardian consent 
for initial evaluation as consent for initial placement or initial provision of special education services.  
(Education Code 56321; 34 CFR 300.300) 
 
Informed parental consent means that the parent/guardian:  (Education Code 56021.1; 34 CFR 300.9) 
 
1.  Has been fully informed, in his/herthe parent/guardian's native language or other mode of 

communication, of all information relevant to the activity for which consent is sought 
 
2.  Understands and agrees, in writing, to the carrying out of the activity for which 

his/herparent/guardian consent is sought and the consent describes that activity and lists the 
records (if any) that will be released and to whom 

 
3.  Understands that the granting of consent is voluntary on his/herthe parent/guardian's part and may 

be revoked at any time 
 
4. Understands that if he/shethe parent/guardian revokes consent, that revocation is not retroactive 

(i.e., it does not negate an action that has occurred after the consent was given and before the 
consent was revoked)).  The district is not required to amend the education records of a student 
to remove any reference to the student's receipt of special education and services if the student's 
parent/guardian submits a written revocation of consent after the initial provision of special 
education and related services to the student. 

 



5 
 

The district shall make reasonable efforts to obtain the informed consent of the parent/guardian for an 
initial evaluation or reevaluation of a student.  (Education Code 56321; 34 CFR 300.300, 300.322) 
 

Note:  It is recommended that the district maintain a record of its attempts to obtain consent, as provided in Items #1-3 
below. 

 
The district shall maintain a record of its attempts to obtain consent, including: (Education Code 56321, 
56341.5; 34 CFR 300.300, 300.322)which may include: 
 
1.  Detailed records of telephone calls made or attempted and the results of those calls 
 
2.  Copies of correspondence sent to the parent/guardian and any responses received 
 
3.  Detailed records of visits made to the parent/guardian's home or place of employment and the 

results of those visits 
 

Note:  Education Code 56321 and 34 CFR 300.300 provide that if a parent/guardian refuses to consent to an evaluation, 
the district may, but is not required to, utilize the due process procedures to pursue the evaluation.  However, if the district 
declines to pursue the evaluation, the district does not violate its child find obligations under state and federal law. 

 
If a parent/guardian refuses to consent to the initial evaluation or fails to respond to a request to provide 
consent, the district may, but is not required to, pursue an evaluation by utilizing the procedural 
safeguards, including the mediation and due process procedures pursuant to 20 USC 1415 and 34 CFR 
300.506-300.516.  (Education Code 56321; 34 CFR 300.300) 
 
For a student who is a ward of the state and not residing with his/herthe student's parent/guardian, the 
district shall make reasonable efforts to obtain the informed consent from the parent of the student for 
an initial evaluation to determine whether the student is a student with a disability.  The district may 
conduct an initial evaluation without obtaining informed consent if any of the following situations exists:  
(Education Code 56321.1; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.300) 
 
1.  Despite reasonable efforts to do so, the district cannot discover the whereabouts of the 

parent/guardian of the student. 
 
2.  The rights of the parent/guardian of the student have been terminated in accordance with 

Californiastate law. 
 
3.  The rights of the parent/guardian to make educational decisions have been subrogated by a judge 

in accordance with Californiastate law and consent for an initial evaluation has been given by an 
individual appointed by the judge to represent the student. 
(cf. 6159.3 - Appointment of Surrogate Parent for Special Education Students) 

 
The district need not obtain parent/guardian consent before reviewing existing data as part of an 
evaluation or reevaluation, or before administering a test or other evaluation that is administered to all 
students, unless consent is required from the parents/guardians of all students.  (Education Code 56321; 
34 CFR 300.300) 
 
Conduct of the Evaluation 
 
The district shall complete the determination as to whether the student is a student with a disability, conduct the 
initial evaluation to determine his/her educational needs, and develop an IEP within 60 days of receiving informed 
parent/guardian consent for the evaluation. (Education Code 56344; 34 CFR 300.300, 300.301) 



6 
 

 
Within 60 calendar days of receiving parental consent for the initial assessment of a student, not counting 
days between the student's regular school sessions, terms, or days of school vacation in excess of five 
schooldays, a determination whether the student is eligible for special education and the educational 
needs of the student shall be made, an IEP team meeting shall occur, and an IEP shall be developed, 
unless the parent/guardian agrees in writing to an extension, pursuant to Education Code 56344.  If the 
60-day time is interrupted by a student school vacation, the 60-day time shall recommence on the date 
that student schooldays reconvene and a meeting to develop an IEP for the student shall be conducted 
within 30 days of a determination that the student needs special education and related services.  
(Education Code 56043, 56344) 
 
However, when a referral has been made for a student 30 days or less prior to the end of the regular 
school year, an IEP required as a result of an assessment of the student shall be developed within 30 days 
after the commencement of the subsequent regular school year.  (Education Code 56043, 56344; 34 CFR 
300.301, 300.323) 
 
The evaluation shall be conducted by qualified personnel who are competent to perform the assessment 
as determined by the district.  (Education Code 56320, 56322) 
 
In addition, evaluations and reevaluations shall be administered by qualified personnel who are 
competent in the oral or sign language skills and written skills of the student's primary language or mode 
of communication and have a knowledge and understanding of the cultural and ethnic background of the 
student.  If it is clearly not feasible to do so, an interpreter shall be used, and the assessment report shall 
document this condition and note that the validity of the assessment may have been affected.  The normal 
process of second-language acquisition, as well as manifestations of dialect and sociolinguistic variance 
shall not be diagnosed as a disabling condition.  (5 CCR 3023) 
 
The screening of a student by a teacher or specialist to determine appropriate instructional strategies for 
curriculum implementation shall not be considered to be an evaluation for eligibility for special education 
and related services. ( (Education Code 56321; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.302) 
 
In conducting the evaluation, the district shall use a variety of assessment tools and strategies to gather 
relevant functional, developmental, and academic information about the student.  The district shall also 
use any information provided by the parent/guardian that may assist the district in making the 
determination as to whether the student is a student with a disability and, if so, the necessary components 
of his/herthe student's IEP when the IEP is developed, including information related to enabling the 
student to be involved in and to progress in the general education curriculum.  (34 CFR 300.304) 
 
The district's evaluation shall not use any single measure or assessment as the sole criterion for 
determining whether a student is a student with a disability and for determining the appropriate 
educational program for the student. The assessment shall use technically sound instruments that may 
assess the relative contribution of cognitive and behavioral factors in addition to physical or 
developmental factors.  (34 CFR 300.304) 
 
The district shall also ensure that assessments and other evaluation materials provide relevant 
information that assists in determining the student's educational needs and are:  (Education Code 56320; 
34 CFR 300.304) 
 
1.  Selected and administered so as not to be discriminatory on a racial, cultural, or sexual basis 
 



7 
 

2.  Provided and administered in the student's native language or other mode of communication and 
in the form most likely to yield accurate information on what the student knows and can do 
academically, developmentally, and functionally, unless it is clearly not feasible to so provide or 
administer 

 
3.  Used for the purposes for which the assessments or measures are valid and reliable 
 
4.  Administered by trained and knowledgeable personnel except that individually administered tests 

of intellectual or emotional functioning shall be administered by a credentialed school 
psychologist 

 
5.  Administered in accordance with any instructions provided by the producer of the assessments 
 
6.  Tailored to assess specific areas of educational need and not merely designed to provide a single 

general intelligence quotient 
 
7.  If administered to a student with impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills, selected and 

administered to best ensure that the results accurately reflect the student's aptitude or achievement 
level or whatever other factors the test purports to measure, rather than reflecting the child's 
impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills (unless those skills are the factors that the test 
purports to measure). 

 
Students shall be assessed in all areas related to the suspected disability, including, if appropriate, health 
and development, vision (including low vision), hearing, motor abilities, language function, general 
intelligence, academic performance, communicative status, self-help, orientation and mobility skills, 
career and vocational abilities and interests, and social and emotional status.  When appropriate, a 
developmental history shall be obtained.  For students with residual vision, a low vision assessment shall 
be provided in accordance with guidelines established pursuant to Education Code 56136.  The district 
shall ensure that the evaluation is sufficiently comprehensive to identify all of the student's special 
education and related service needs, whether or not commonly linked to the disability category in which 
the student has been classified.  (Education Code 56320; 34 CFR 300.304) 
 
As part of the initial evaluation and any reevaluation, the IEP team and other qualified professionals 
shall, if appropriate, review existing evaluation data on the student, including evaluations and 
information provided by the parents/guardians, current classroom-based local or state assessments and 
classroom-based observations, and observations by teachers and related services providers.  On the basis 
of that review and input from the student's parent/guardian, the team shall identify what additional data, 
if any, are needed to determine:  (Education Code 56381; 34 CFR 300.305) 
 
1.  Whether the student is a student with a disability, or in the case of a reevaluation, whether the 

student continues to have a disability, and the educational needs of the student 
 
2.  The present levels of academic achievement and related developmental needs of the student 
 
3.  Whether the student needs, or continues to need, special education and related services 
 
4. Whether any additions or modifications to the special education and related services are needed 

to enable the student to meet the measurable annual goals set out in his/herthe student's IEP and 
to participate, as appropriate, in the general education curriculum 

 



8 
 

If a student has transferred from another district in the same school year or leaves this district, the district 
shall coordinate with the student's prior or subsequent district as necessary and as expeditiously as 
possible to ensure prompt completion of full evaluations.  (34 CFR 300.304) 
 
Evaluation Report 
 
The personnel who evaluate the student shall prepare a written report of the results of each evaluation.  
The report shall include, but not be limited to, the following:  (Education Code 56327) 
 
1. Whether the student may need special education and related services 
 
2. The basis for making the determination 
 
3. The relevant behavior noted during the observation of the student in an appropriate setting 
 
4. The relationship of that behavior to the student's academic and social functioning 
 
5. The educationally relevant health, developmental, and medical findings, if any 
 
6. For students with learning disabilities, whether there is such a discrepancy between achievement 

and ability that it cannot be corrected without special education and related services 
 
7. A determination concerning the effects of environmental, cultural, or economic disadvantage, 

where appropriate 
 
8. The need for specialized services, materials, and equipment for students with low incidence 

disabilities, consistent with Education Code 56136 
 
Eligibility Determination 
 

Note:  The following section contains procedures for determining a student's eligibility for special education and related 
services.  Education Code 56334-56338 and 34 CFR 300.307-300.311 provide additional procedures for conducting the 
evaluation and making the determination for eligibility of a student with specific learning disabilities. 

 
Upon completion of the administration of assessments and other evaluation measures, a group of 
qualified professionals and the parent/guardian shall determine whether the student is a student with a 
disability as defined in 5 CCR 3030 and 34 CFR 300.8 and, if so, his/herthe student's educational needs. 
In interpreting the data, the group shall draw information from a variety of sources, including aptitude 
and achievement tests, parent/guardian input, and teacher recommendations, as well as information about 
the student's physical condition, social or cultural background, and adaptive behavior.  The group shall 
ensure that the information obtained from these sources is documented and carefully considered.  (34 
CFR 300.306) 
The personnel who evaluate the student shall prepare a written report of the results of each evaluation. 
The report shall include, but not be limited to, the following: (56327) 
1. Whether the student may need special education and related services 
2. The basis for  
The relevant behavior noted during the observation of the student in an appropriate setting 
4. The relationship of that behavior to the student's academic and social functioning 
5. The educationally relevant health, developmental, and medical findings, if any 
6. For students with learning disabilities, whether there is such a discrepancy between achievement and ability 
that it cannot be corrected without special education and related services 



9 
 

7. A determination concerning the effects of environmental, cultural, or economic disadvantage, where appropriate 
8. The need for specialized services, materials, and equipment for students with low incidence disabilities, 
consistent with Education Code 56136Services." 
 

Note:  Education Code 56329 requires districts to provide notice about specific factors in making the determination of 
eligibility as part of the district's evaluation plan.  See section above entitled "Initial Evaluation for Special Education 
Services.” 
 
When making a determination of eligibility for special education and related services, the district shall 
not determine that a student is disabled if the primary factor for such determination is a lack of 
appropriate instruction in reading, including the essential components of reading instruction pursuant to 
20 USC 6368, lack of instruction in mathematics, limited English proficiency, or that the student does 
not otherwise meet the eligibility criteria.  (Education Code 56329; 34 CFR 300.306) 
 
If a determination is made that a student has a disability and needs special education and related services, an IEP 
shall be developed within a total time not to exceed 60 days, not counting days between the student's regular 
school sessions or terms or days of school vacation in excess of five school days, from the date of the receipt of 
the parent/guardian's consent for evaluation, unless the parent/guardian agrees, in writing, to an extension. 
(Education Code 56043; 34 CFR 300.306) 
 
The normal process of second-language acquisition, as well as manifestations of dialect and 
sociolinguistic variance, shall not be diagnosed as a disabling condition.  (5 CCR 3023) 
 
Independent Educational Evaluation 
 

Note:  34 CFR 300.502 requires the district to provide parents/guardians, upon request for an IEE, information about 
where an IEE may be obtained and the district's criteria for the evaluation, including the location of the evaluation, 
qualifications of the examiner, and timelines for obtaining the evaluation.  These criteria must be the same as the criteria 
that the district uses for district-initiated evaluations.  In addition, Education Code 56329 requires districts to provide 
notice about parent/guardian rights to an IEE as part of the proposed evaluation plan; see section above entitled "Initial 
Evaluation for Special Education Services."  Districts may wish to modify the following section to include specific criteria 
developed by the district or special education local plan area, as appropriate. 

 
An independent educational evaluation is defined as an evaluation conducted by a qualified examiner 
who is not employed by the district.  (34 CFR 300.502) 
 
Public expense means that the district either pays for the full cost of the IEE or ensures that the evaluation 
is otherwise provided at no cost to the parent/guardian. (Education Code 56329;  (34 CFR 300.502) 
 
The parents/guardians of a student with a disability have the right to obtain an IEE at public expense 
under the same criteria, including the location of the evaluation and the qualifications of the examiner, 
that the district uses for a district-initiated evaluation.  (34 CFR 300.502) 
 
The parent/guardian is entitled to only one IEE at public expense each time the district conducts an 
evaluation with which the parent/guardian disagrees.  (Education Code 56329; 34 CFR 300.502) 
 
If a parent/guardian has requested an IEE, the district may ask for the reason that he/she the 
parent/guardian objects to the district's evaluation.  However, the parent/guardian is not required to 
provide the reason toan explanation and the district. may not unreasonably delay either providing the IEE 
at public expense or filing a due process complaint to request a due process hearing to defend the public 
evaluation.  (34 CFR 300.502) 
 



10 
 

Upon receiving the request for an IEE, the district shall, without unnecessary delay, either:  (34 CFR 
300.502) 
 
1.  File a due process complaint to request a hearing to show that its evaluation is appropriate 
 
2.  Ensure that an IEE is provided at public expense, unless the district can later 

demonstratedemonstrates at a hearing that the evaluation obtained by the parent/guardian did not 
satisfy the district's criteria 

 
If a due process hearing decision determines that the district's evaluation is appropriate, then the 
parent/guardian may obtain an IEE but not at public expense. ( (Education Code 56329; 34 CFR 300.502) 
 
In any decision made with respect to providing FAPE to a student with a disability, the result of any IEE 
obtained by the student's parent/guardian shall be considered by the district if it meets district criteria.  
Any such result also may be presented as evidence at a hearing on a due process complaint. ( (Education 
Code 56329; 34 CFR 300.502) 
 
Reevaluation 
 
A reevaluation shall be conducted when the district determines that the educational or related service 
needs of the student, including improved academic achievement and functional performance, warrant a 
reevaluation or if the student's parent/guardian or teacher requests reevaluation.  Such reevaluations shall 
occur every three years, unless the parent/guardian and district agree in writing that a reevaluation is 
unnecessary.  A reevaluation may not occur more than once a year, unless the parent/guardian and the 
district agree otherwise.  (Education Code 56043, 56381; 34 CFR 300.303) 
 
The district shall ensure that any reevaluations of the student are conducted in accordance with the 
evaluation procedures pursuant to 34 CFR 300.304-300.311.  (34 CFR 300.303) 
 

Note:  The following paragraph is for use by districts that offer grades K-1. 
 
Before entering kindergarten or first grade, as the case may be, children with disabilities who are in a 
preschool program shall be reevaluated to determine if they still need special education and services.  
IEP teams shall identify a means of monitoring the continued success of children who are determined to 
be eligible for less intensive special education programs to ensure that gains made are not lost by a rapid 
removal of individualized programs and supports for these children..  (Education Code 56445) 
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 



1 
**Revisions** 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Policy 6164.5: Student Success Teams Status: ADOPTED 
Original Adopted Date: 04/10/2007  

 
Note:  The following optional policy should be revised to reflect district practice.  Utilization of the student success team 
(SST) process is not required by state or federal law.  As such, this Board policy reflects best practices rather than legal 
requirements. 
 
The SST is an early intervention process that brings together parents/guardians, certificated and classified staff, 
administrators, and/or the student, as appropriate, to identify student needs and develop an improvement plan to address 
those needs. 

 
The Governing Board encourages the collaboration of parents/guardians, teachers, resource 
personnelcertificated and classified staff, administrators and students, and/or the student, as appropriate, 
in evaluating the strengths and needs of students having academic, attendance, social, emotional, or 
behavioral difficulties and in identifying strategies and programs that may assist thesuch students. in 
maximizing their potential.  The Superintendent or designee shall establish student success teams (SST) 
as needed to address individual students'student needs.  
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 
(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education under Section 504) 
(cf. 5149 - At-Risk Students) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish and maintain a process for initiating referralsthe referral 
of students to the SSTs, which may include referral by district staff, parents/guardians, and/or agency 
representatives.  The Superintendent or designee may also establish and maintain a process for 
responding to SST referrals, which may include a determination by the district as to whether an SST 
shall be convened for an individual student success team. . 
 
Each SST may collect and analyze relevant student data, as appropriate.  The SST may also review the 
student's educational history, work samples, strengths and areas for growth, and identify available 
resources and strategies. 
(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights) 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
 
Each SST shall develop a plan to support the student which incorporates intervention strategies to assist 
the student..  Such strategies may include changes in program placement or instructional methods, 
recommendation of supplemental educational services, parent involvement strategies, social, emotional 
and/or behavioral interventions, discipline, referrals to other agencies or resources, and/or other 
appropriate interventions.  
(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 
(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 
(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 
(cf. 5141.6 - Student5 - Mental Health and Social Services) 



2 
 

(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
(cf. 6120 - Response to Instruction and Intervention) 
(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 
(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 
(cf. 6176 - Weekend/Saturday Classes) 
(cf. 6177 - Summer School)Learning Programs 
(cf. 6178 - VocationalCareer Technical Education) 
(cf. 6178.1 - Work Experience Education-Based Learning) 
(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 
(cf. 6181 - Alternative Schools)/Programs of Choice 
(cf. 6182 - Opportunity School/Class/Program) 
(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction) 
(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School) 
 
The student success teamSST shall monitor the student's progress, evaluate the extent to which the 
recommended strategies have been implemented, make adjustments to the plan, and develop additional 
interventions as needed.  
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 56303, a student should be referred for special education instruction and services only 
after the resources of the regular education program have been considered and, where appropriate, utilized.  However, the 
U.S. Department of Education's Office of Special Education Programs Memorandum 11-07 emphasizes that districts have 
an obligation to ensure that evaluations of students suspected of having a disability are not delayed or denied because of 
the implementation of response to intervention strategies, such as the SST process. 

 
The SST process shall not delay or deny a referral for evaluation for eligibility for special education, as 
may be required under state or federal law. 
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 
 

Note:  Districts that have established multi-tiered systems of support (MTSS) may integrate SSTs into such frameworks.  
The California Department of Education describes MTSS as an integrated, comprehensive framework for districts that 
focuses on common core state standards, core instruction, differentiated and student-centered learning, individualized 
student needs, and the alignment of systems necessary for academic, behavioral, and social success.  MTSS is connected 
to the eight state priorities in the local control and accountability plan, and encompasses inclusive academic instruction 
as reflected in the California state standards and frameworks, response to instruction and intervention, behavior instruction 
such as positive behavioral interventions and supports and restorative practices, and social-emotional learning. 
 
The following paragraph is optional and should be deleted by districts that do not have an established MTSS. 

 
The Superintendent or designee may integrate SSTs into the district's multi-tiered system of support, 
including identification of students who need additional support, the level(s) of support, appropriate 
interventions, monitoring of progress, and whether the goal of intervention has been met. 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 



3 
 

To strengthen the effectiveness of SSTs, the Superintendent or designee may provide staff development 
in the identification of students who may need additional support, implementation of measurable and 
targeted interventions, and monitoring of progress and goal attainment. 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
8800-8807  Healthy Start support services for children 
48260-48273  Truancy 
48400-48454  Continuation education 
49600-49604  Educational counseling 
51745-51749.6  Independent study programs 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
54400-54425  Programs for disadvantaged children 
54440-54445  Migrant children 
56300-56305  Identification and referral 
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 
4343-4352.5  Primary interventions program, mental health 
18986.40-18986.46  Interagency children's services 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Best Practices in Special Education, Governance Brief, May 2019 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Return to School Roadmap:  Child Find Under Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, August 
2021 
A Response to Intervention (RTI) Process Cannot Be Used to Delay-Deny an Evaluation for Eligibility under the 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA):  Memorandum 11-07, January 2011 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Education, multi-tiered systems of support:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/cr/ri 
National Dropout Prevention Center:  http://www.dropoutprevention.org 
U.S. Department of Education, Office of Special Education Programs: 
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osers/osep 





1 
**Revisions** 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Regulation 6164.5: Student Success Teams Status: ADOPTED 
Original Adopted Date: 04/10/2007  
 
 

Note:  The following optional administrative regulation maybe revised to reflect district practice. 
 
Utilization of the Student Success Team (SST) process is not required by state or federal law.  As such, this administrative 
regulation reflects best practices rather than legal requirements. 

 
Team Membership 
 
Members of individual student success teams (SST) may include: 
 
1.  The principal or designee 
 
2.  One or more of the student's classroom teachers or former teachers 
 
3.  The student's parents/guardians 
 
4.  The student if appropriate 
 
5.  School Counselor(s) 
 
6. Resource personnel or specialists, such as a school counselor, psychologist, nurse, outreach 

consultant, special education resource person, categorically funded staff person, department 
chairperson, speech and language specialist, reading specialist, social worker, probation officer, 
community resource representative, mental health worker , and/or other person(s) relevant to the 
student's situation, as determined by the district 

 
The makeup of each individual SST is at the district's discretion, and may not include participation from 
individuals in each of the categories listed above. 
 
Team Responsibilities 
 

Note:  The Superintendent or designee may appoint a districtwide or schoolwide SST coordinator to coordinate SST 
meetings and related activities. 

 
The principal or designee shall: 
 
1.  Schedule meetings and establish meeting procedures 
 
2.  Contact parents/guardians and other team members regarding team meetings 
 
3.  Consult with appropriate school staff, including teachers and/or district resource personnel 
 
4.  Arrange for observation of the student in the problem situation as needed 
 



2 
 

 

5.  Collect any additional background information necessary to inform team members about the 
student's strengths and needs, such as relevant student data, educational history, and work 
samples, as appropriate 
(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights) 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 

 
6.  Help the student and parents/guardians prepare for the meeting 
 
7.  Facilitate the team meetings 
 
8.  Develop a plan to support the student which incorporates intervention strategies 

(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 
(cf. 5141.5 - Mental Health) 
(cf. 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention) 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 6141.4 - International Baccalaureate Program) 
(cf. 6141.5 - Advanced Placement) 
(cf. 6152 - Class Assignment) 
(cf. 6152.1 - Placement in Mathematics Courses) 
(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 
(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education under Section 504) 
(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) 
(cf. 6172.1 - Concurrent Enrollment in College Classes) 
(cf. 6176 - Weekend/Saturday Classes) 
(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs) 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 
(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 
(cf. 6181 - Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice) 
(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction) 
(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School) 

 
9. Ensure that the student's progress is monitored and, that follow-up meetings are regularly 

scheduled, and that adjustments are made to the plan and related interventions as necessary 




